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NOTICE 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 4th annual general meeting of the members of 

Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited ("the Company") will be held on Monday, 
September 26, 2022 at 10.55 a.m at 406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N. S. Phadke 

Marg, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400069, to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual financial statements of the 

Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of 
the Board of Directors and the Auditors' thereon. 

2. To appoint M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells (FRN: 015125N), the Chartered 

Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold the office for further 

period of five years i.e. from the financial year 2022-23 to financial year 2026-27. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

3. To appoint Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422) as the Director of the 
Company: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without 
modification, as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422) who was 

appointed as an additional director by the Board of Directors in their meeting held 
on December 9, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and who holds office only upto the date of this annual general 
meeting be and is hereby appointed as the Director of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors and Company Secretary of the 
Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all the acts, deeds and things 

which are necessary to give effect to the said resolution." 

-------
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4. To appoint Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) as the Director of the Company: 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with or without 
modification, as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) who was appointed as an 

additional director by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on December 9, 

2021 in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and who holds office only upto the date of this aimual general meeting be and is 

hereby appointed as the Director of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Directors and Company Secretary of the 

Company be and are hereby severally authorised to do all the acts, deeds and things 
which are necessary to give effect to the said resolution." 

5. To ratify remuneration of Mfs HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuai1t to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force, the members of the Company hereby ratify the 

remuneration of Rs. 25,000 / - (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand Only) payable to M/ s 
HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number-000525), who has 

been appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company to 
conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23. 

-----
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the 

Directors and Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and matters that may be required in this 
regard." 

Place: N oida 
Date: May 30, 2022 

By Order of the Board 
For A vaada Solarise Energy Private Limited 

~ 
Aadishri Sahasrabuddhe 
Company Secretary 

-----
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1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 

Proxies, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited 

at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. 

2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting 

are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the Board resolution 

authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting. 

3. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the 

Special Business to be transacted at the annual general meeting in respect of Item nos. 3, 4 

and 5 is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice. 

-----
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 (1) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

Item No. 3: 

In terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi 
(DIN: 09133422) was appointed as an additional director of the Company at the 

board meeting held on December 9, 2021 to hold up to the date of the ensuing annual 

general meeting of the Company. His brief profile is as follows: -

Nationality Indian 

Date of Birth February 1, 1973 
Qualifications M.Tech- Control System from NIT 

Allahabad and B.E- Electronics & Telecom 
from Govt Engineering College, Rewa 

Experience - Mr. Rajesh Dwivedi is heading Operations 

and Maintenance at A vaada Group. 
- He has overall 23+ years of experience in 

operation and maintenance, design 
engineering, project erection & 
commissioning etc. 

- He has previously worked with NTPC, 

Lanco Infratech & L&T. 
Date of Appointment on the December 9, 2021 
Board 
Terms and Conditions of Appointed as Non-Executive Director 
Appointment 
Details of remuneration None 
sought to be paid 
Last drawn remuneration None 

Shareholding in the None 
Company 

-----
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Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and other 
Key Managerial Personnel of 
the Company 
Number of Meetings of the 
Board attended during the year 
Directorship in Other 
Companies 

Chairman/Members in 
Committee of Board of 
Companies in which he/she is 
a Director 

AVAADA SOLARISE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 

None 
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1. Avaada MHVidarbha Private Limited 

(formerly known as' Avaada MHYavat 

Private Limited') 
2. A vaada Sunlight Private Limited 

3. A vaada RJJamsar Private Limited 

(formerly known as 'Azure Power Forty 

Six Private Limited') 

4. A vaada RJBikaner Private Limited 

5. A vaada RJGreen Private Limited 
6. Avaada IndSolar Private Limited 

7. A vaada InSustainable Private Limited 
8. Avaada KNYadgir Private Limited 

None 

Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422) is not disqualified from being appointed 

as the Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. 

The Board is of opinion Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422) possesses 

appropriate skills, experience and knowledge that will enable him to discharge his 

duties, roles and functions as the Director. 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the resolution at Item no. 3 of the 
notice by way of an ordinary resolution. 

----
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Save and except Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422), none of the other 

Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item no. 3 of the 
Notice. 

Item No. 4: 

In terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) 

was appointed as an additional director of the Company at the board meeting held 

on December 9, 2021 to hold up to the date of the ensuing annual general meeting of 
the Company. His brief profile is as follows: -

Nationality Indian 

Date of Birth November 2, 1980 
Qualifications Chartered Accountant (C.A.) from Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and 
LLB, Gold Medallist from C.C.S. University 
Meerut 

Experience - Mr. Goel is heading Taxation function of the 
A vaada Group. 

- He has overall experience of more than 21 

years in the field taxation including Corporate 
Income Tax, International Tax, Transfer 
Pricing, VAT, GST etc. 

- He has previously worked with L&T, Punj 

Lloyd and Isolux Corsan etc. 
Date of Appointment on December 9, 2021 
the Board 
Terms and Conditions of Appointed as Non-Executive Director 
Appointment 
Details of remuneration None 
sought to be paid 
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Shareholding in the 
Company 
Relationship with other 
Directors, Manager and 
other Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company 
Number of Meetings of 
the Board attended during 
the year 
Directorship in Other 
Companies 

Chairman/Members in 
Committee of Board of 
Companies in which he/ 
she is a Director 
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1. A vaada MHVidarbha Private Limited 
(formerly known as' Avaada MHYavat 

Private Limited') 

2. A vaada RJBikaner Private Limited 

3. Avaada RJGreen Private Limited 

4. A vaada IndSolar Private Limited 

5. A vaada Clean Sustainable Energy Private 
Limited 

6. A vaada Insustainable Private Limited 

7. Avaada KNYadgir Private Limited 

None 

Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) is not disqualified from being appointed as the 

Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act. 

The Board is of opinion Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) possesses appropriate 
skills, experience and knowledge that will enable him to discharge his duties, roles 
and functions as the Director. 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the resolution at Item no. 4 of the 
notice by way of an ordinary resolution. 

----
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Save and except Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443), none of the other Directors or Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are in any way concerned or 

interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution set out at Item no. 4 of the 
Notice. 

Item No. 5: 

As the turnover of the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2022 had 
exceeded Rs. 50 crores, in accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit Rules) 2014 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors 

in their meeting held on May 30, 2022 had approved the re-appointment of M/ s 
HCB & Co., the Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 

March 31, 2023 at an annual remuneration of Rs. 25,000/- (Rupees Twenty Five 
Thousand Only). 

Further, in accordance with the said provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules 
thereunder, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as approved by the 

Board, needs to be ratified by the members of the Company. 

Accordingly, ratification by the members is sought for the remuneration payable to 

the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending March 31, 2023 by approving the 

passing of an ordinary resolution as set out at Item No. 5 of the Notice. 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives 

are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution. 

Place: N oida 
Date: May 30, 2022 

~ ::::::._-=---=----=-= 

By Order of the Board 
For A vaada Solarise Energy Private Limited 

~ -
Aadishri Sahasrabuddhe 
Company Secretary 

----
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
To be handed over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall 

4th annual general meeting 
Monday, September 26, 2022 at 10.55 a.m. 

Name of the Member(s) 

Registered address 

E-mail ID 

Folio No.JDP ID-client ID 
No. of Shares 

GIN: U40300Dl2018PTC338280 

Registered Office: 
910/19, Suryakiran, 

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +011-68172100 
E: avaadasolarise@avaada.com 

www.avaadaenergy.com 

I/We certify that I/We am/ are the registered Member(s)/Proxy for the registered 
Member( s) of the Company. 

I/We hereby record my/ our presence at the 4th annual general meeting of the 
Company held at 406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri 
(East), Mumbai - 400069 on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 10.55 a.m. 

Member' sjProxy Signature 

Note: Please complete this slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting venue. 

----
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[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 

Management and Administration Rules, 2014] 

CIN U40300DL2018PTC338280 
Name of the Company A vaada Solarise Energy Private Limited 
Registered Office 910/19, Suryakiran, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 

New Delhi- 110 001 
Name of the member(s) 
Registered Address 
E-mail ID 

Folio No/Client ID 
DPID 

I/We, being the member(s) of _____ _ shares of the above named Company, hereby 
appoint: 

1. Name Address 

Signature: or failing him 

2. Name Address 
Signature: or failing him 

3. Name Address 
Signature: or failing him 

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 
4th annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 

10.55 a.m at 406, 4th Floor, Hubtown Solaris, N . S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (East), Mumbai -

400069 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

-----
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Sr. No. of 
resolution 

Particulars 

Correspondence Office: 
406. Hubtown Solaris, 

N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai - 400069 

T : +91-22-6140 8000 

Ordinary Business: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited annual financial 

statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of 
Directors and the Auditors thereon 

2. To appoint Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the Chartered 
Accountants (FRN:015125N) as the Statutory Auditors of the 

Company to hold the office for further period of five years 
i.e. from the financial year 2022-23 to financial year 2026-27 

Special Business: 
3. To appoint Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi (DIN: 09133422) as 

the Director of the Company 

4. To appoint Mr. Gopal Goel (DIN: 09133443) as the Director 
of the Company 

5. To ratify remuneration of M/ s HCB & Co., the Cost 
Accountants as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the 
Financial Year 2022-23 

Signed this ___ day of _ _____ 2022 

Affix 
Revenue 
Stamp 

CIN: U40300DL2018PTC338280 

Registered Office: 
910/19. Suryakiran, 

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +011-68172100 
E: avaadasolarise@avaada.com 

www.avaadaenergy.com 

For Against 

Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
Notes: 
This form, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at the 
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

Notwithstanding the above the Proxies can vote on such other items which may be tabled at the 
meeting by the shareholders present. 

~::::::====~ ----
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BOARD's REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 

Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited ("the Company") 
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is our pleasure to present the 4th Annual Report 
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2022 as under: 

Financial Results and Business Review: 

A summary of the comparative financial performance of the Company for financial 

years 2021-22 and 2020-21 is presented below: 
(Amount in INR millions) 

Particulars Financial Year ended 

31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Revenue from Operations 929.74 935.60 

Other Income 30.30 27.20 

Total Income 960.04 962-80 

Less: Expenditure 287.25 119.91 

Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, hlterest and Tax 672_79 842.89 

Less: Depreciation and amortization expense 271.36 263.78 

Less: Interest on external borrowings 465.47 509.40 

Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items (64.04) 69.71 

Less: Exceptional and extraordinary items - -
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (PBT) (64.04) 69.71 

Provision for Income Tax 

(i) Current Tax - -

{ii) Deferred Tax (29.85) 39.65 

Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax (PAT) (34.19) 30.06 

----
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The Company has 3 x 50 MW Grid Connected Solar PV Power Project operational in 

Pavagada Taluka in the State of Karnataka. The Company's revenue from operations 

during the year was INR 929.74 millions as compared to revenue of INR 935.60 

millions in the previous year. Whereas, loss before tax of the Company was 
INR 64.04 millions as compared to profit before tax of INR 69.71 millions in the 

previous year. 

Further, the Company's net loss for the year was INR 34.19 millions as compared to 
net profit after tax of INR 30.06 millions in the previous year. 

Dividend: 

As the Company does not have any profits during the year, your Directors do not 

recommend any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Reserves: 

As the Company does not have any profits during the year, no amount is proposed 

to be transferred to reserves. 

Renewable Energy Outlook: 

COVID-19 Economic Stimulus and Performance of Power Sector in India 

India, as a nation, has stood firmly to manage the unprecedented challenge caused 

by COVID-19. The management model adopted at the national and the state level, 
has been well lauded nationally and internationally during these trying times for 

planning and execution. The second wave has caught the nation unaware with its 

rapidity and magnitude. India stood strong and has not witnessed a breakdown in 

the supply chain of health infrastructure despite the effect of the virus. 

Unarguably, the second wave of the COVID pandemic was more severe and 

electricity being an essential service, the Government was expected to support the 
local communities, administration and Government machinery in the battle against 

the Pandemic through seamless 24X7 electricity service. 
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The second wave of COVID-19 showed its devastating effect mainly in the month of 
April-May 2021. The response to the second wave was handled by the state 

governments by implementing lockdowns and closing their borders. As all efforts 
were being made to maintain reliability of power system even during COVID-19 

pandemic, the all India lockdown for containment of COVID-19 from 25th March 

2020 onwards had resulted in reduction of all India Electricity Demand by 25-30% as 

compared to the same period in 2019 due to shutting down of a large chunk of 

industrial, commercial and traction loads. Subsequently, with gradual removal of 
lock down and re-opening of the country's economy, the electricity demand started 

recovering. However, due to the second wave of the pandemic which started in 
April 2021, many states re-imposed lockdowns but due to the decentralized nature 

of lockdowns, impact on all India demand was lower than first wave. 

Against the backdrop of the unprecedented impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on 
the economy, the government introduced a stimulus package under the 

Atmanirbhar Bharat scheme to revive economic growth and make the country self­
reliant. In the last tranche of the stimulus package, the government increased the 

borrowing limit of the states from 3% to 5% of the gross state domestic product 

(GSDP). 

Whereas Government of India have duly recognized COVID-19 Pandemic as an 

event of Force Majeure in the Contracts/ Agreements signed for execution of 

power/renewable energy projects and granted extension in timelines for completion 
of the projects; during first wave (FY 2020-21) the blanket extension was granted for 

five months and upto six months on case to case basis and, during the second wave, 

extension was granted for seventy six (76) days. 

Renewable Energy Prospect in India 

The Indian renewable energy sector is the fourth most attractive renewable energy 

market in the world. India was ranked fourth in wind power, fifth in solar power 

and fourth in renewable power installed capacity, as of 2020. 

Installed renewable power generation capacity has gained pace over the past few 

years, posting a CAGR of 17.33% between FY16-20. With the increased support of 
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Government and improved economics, the sector has become attractive from 
investors perspective. As India looks to meet its energy demand on its own, which is 

expected to reach 15,820 TWh by 2040, renewable energy is set to play an important 
role. The government plans to establish renewable energy capacity of 523 GW 

(including 73 GW from Hydro) by 2030. 

The renewable energy sector outlook for the year 2022 is bright despite the COVID-

19 disruptions. The sector has certainly found the path to recovery with a steady 
improvement in power demand and recovery in economic activities. The sun is 

shining bright on the Indian power sector with the share of renewable energy 
constantly on the rise in the country's total energy mix. 

Market Size for Renewable Energy in India ------------~-~-~-
Programme/Scheme wise Cumulative Physical Progress as on April, 2022 

Sector 

FY- 2022-23 

Achievements 
(April 2022) 

I. Installed RE Capacity (CAPACITIES IN MW) 

Wind Power 170.50 

Solar Power* 1341.10 

Small Hydro Power 2.00 

Biomass (Bagasse) Cogeneration 0.00 

Cumulative 
Achievements 
(as on 30.04.2022) 

40528.08 

55337.66 

4850.90 

9433.56 
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Biomass(non­
bagasse) Cogeneration 

Waste to Power 

Waste to Energy ( off-grid) 

Total 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1513.60 

772.05 

223.14 

253.61 

111399.00 

India is targeting about 450 Gigawatt (GW) of installed renewable energy capacity 
by 2030 - about 280 GW (over 60%) is expected from solar. The renewable energy 
capacity addition stood at 8.2 GW for the first eight months of FY22 against 3.4 GW 
for the first eight months of FY21. ICRA expects renewable energy capacity addition 

of 12.5 GW in FY22 and 16 GW in FY23. 

Solar power installed capacity has increased by more than 18 times from 2.63 GW in 
March 2014 to 49.3 GW at the end of 2021. In FY22, till December 2021, India has 

added 7.4 GW of solar power capacity, up 335% from 1.73 GW in the previous year. 
Off-grid solar power is growing at a fast pace in India, with sales of 329,000 off-grid 
solar products in the first half of 2021. 

With a potential capacity of 363 GW and with policies focused on the renewable 

energy sector, Northern India is expected to become the hub for renewable energy in 
India. 

!Investments and Developments 

According to the data released by Department for Promotion of Industry and 
Internal Trade (DPIIT), FDI inflow in the Indian non-conventional energy sector 
stood at US$ 11.21 billion between April 2000-December 2021. More than INR 5.2 
lakh crore (US$ 70 billion) has been invested in India's renewable energy sector since 
2014. According to the analytics firm British Business Energy, India ranked 3rd 

globally in terms of its renewable energy investments and plans in 2020. 

------
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Some major investments and developments in the Indian renewable energy sector 

are as follows: 

• India ranked third on the EY Renewable Energy Country Attractive Index 2021; 

• In February 2022, Creduce Technologies-HCPL JV announced winning the bid for 

India's single largest hydro power carbon credits project with Satluj Jal Vidyut 

Nigam, which will create more than 80 million carbon credits; 

• In February 2022, Husk Power Systems, a renewable energy company working 

towards rural electrification, secured a US$ 4.2 million loan from the Indian 

Renewable Energy Development Agency (IREDA); 

• In December 2021, India's largest energy provider, Tata Power, was awarded a 

contract by the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited 

(MSEDCL) to set up a 300 MW wind-solar hybrid power plant; 

• In October 2021, Reliance New Energy Solar Ltd. (RNESL) announced two 
acquisitions to build more capabilities. Both acquisitions - REC Solar Holdings AS 

(REC Group), a Norway-based firm, and Sterling & Wilson Solar, based in India -
exceeded US$ 1 billion and are expected to contribute to Reliance' s target of 

achieving the capacity of 100 GW of solar energy at Jamnagar by 2030; 

• In October 2021, Adani Green Energy Ltd. (AGEL) acquired SB Energy India for 

US$ 3.5 billion to strengthen its position in the renewable energy sector in India; 

• In August 2021, Copenhagen Infrastructure Partners (CIP) signed an investment 
agreement with Amp Energy India Private Limited to facilitate joint equity 

investments of US$ 200 million across Indian renewable energy projects; 

• In July 2021, National Thermal Power Corporation Renewable Energy Ltd. (NTPC 
REL), NTPC's fully owned subsidiary, sent out a tender to domestic 

manufacturers to build India's first green hydrogen fueling station in Leh, 

Ladakh; 

• In June 2021, Reliance Industries announced investments upto INR 75,000 crore 

(US$10.07 billion) in the green energy segment; 

-----
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• In June 2021, Suzlon secured a contract for 252 MW wind power project from CLP 

India. The project is expected to be commissioned in 2022; 

• In June 2021, Tata Power Solar secured a contract worth INR 686 crore (US$ 93.58 

million) from the NTPC to build 210 MW projects in Gujarat; 

• In May 2021, Virescent Infrastructure, a renewable energy platform, acquired 76% 
of India's solar asset portfolio of Singapore-based Sindicatum Renewable Energy 
Company Pte Ltd.; 

• In April 2021, GE Power India1s approved the acquisition of 50% stake in NTPC 

GE Power Services Pvt. Ltd. for Rs 7.2 crore (US$ 0.96 million); 

• The NTPC is expected to commission India's largest floating solar power plant in 

Ramagundam, Telangana by May-June 2022. The expected total installed capacity 
is 447MW; and 

• The Solar Energy Corporation of India (SECI) implemented large-scale central 

auctions for solar parks and has awarded contracts for 47 parks with over 25 GW 

of combined capacity. 

Government initiatives 

Some initiatives by Government of India to boost India's renewable energy sector 
are as follows: 

• Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 

The Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 

on 31.12.2020 under section 176 of the Electricity Act, 2003. These Rules shall 
empower the consumers of electricity and emanate from the conviction that the 

power systems exist to serve the consumers and the consumers have rights to get 
the reliable services and quality electricity. 

Implementation of these Rules shall ensure that new electricity connections, 
refunds and other services are given in a time bound manner. Wilful disregard to 

consumer rights will result in levying penalties on service providers. 

-----
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An amendment to Electricity (Rights of Consumers) Rules, 2020 was also notified 

on 29.09.2021 wherein the limit for net metering was increased to S00KW from 

l0KW. 

• Late Payment Surcharge Rules 2021 

Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge) Rules, 2021 have been notified by the Central 

Government on 22nd February, 2021. Late Payment Surcharge means the charges 

payable by a distribution company to a generating company or electricity trader 

for power procured from it, or by a user of a transmission system to a 

transmission licensee on account of delay in payment of monthly charges beyond 

the due date. Late Payment Surcharge shall be payable on the payment 

outstanding after the due date at the base rate of Late Payment Surcharge 

applicable for the period for the first month of default. 

• Waiver of ISTS Transmission Charges and Losses for Solar & Wind Power 

In Order to promote generation from renewable sources of energy, Ministry of 

Power has issued an Order on 5th August 2020 for extension of waiver of Inter 

State Transmission System (ISTS) charges and losses for transmission of the 

electricity generated from solar and wind projects commissioned till 30th June 

2023. Further an order was issued on 21.06.2021 for extension of waiver of Inter 

State Transmission System (ISTS) charges for transmission of the electricity 

generated from solar and wind projects up to 30.06.2025. Moreover vide this order 

the waiver of ISTS charges shall also be allowed for Hydro Pumped Storage Plant 

(PSP) and Battery Energy Storage System (BESS). 

• Issuance of Renewable Purchase Obligations (RPO) Trajectory 

Long term RPO growth trajectory for the period 2016-17 to 2018-19 was notified 

by Ministry of Power on 22.7.2016. An order on RPO Trajectory for a further 

period of three years i.e. from 2019-20 to 2021-22 under the provisions of Tariff 

Policy has been issued by Ministry of Power on 14.06.2018. In super-session of 

orders dated 22.7.2016 and 14.06.2018, Ministry of Power has specified new RPO 

trajectory vide order dated 29.01.2021. Trajectory for HPO has also been issued 

through this order. 
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This would help in meeting the renewable energy generation targets set by the 

Central Government. 

• Introduction of Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) 

Green Day Ahead Market (GDAM) is a marketplace for trading of renewable 
power on a day-ahead basis. This would facilitate accomplishment of green 

targets as well as support integration of green energy in a most efficient, 

competitive and transparent manner. GDAM was launched on 25.10.2021. 

The Green day Ahead Market will be available through the Power Exchanges. The 
GDAM market structure will be within the existing Day Ahead Market (DAM) 

structure but will create a separate clearing mechanism and price discovery for 
renewable and conventional energy sources. 

It will give opportunity to the RE generators to sell their power and reduce 

curtailment and also the buyer of RE to transparently purchase green power from 
the market. It would also facilitate the obligated entities to meet its Renewable 

Purchase Obligation (RPO). 

• Electricity (Timely Recovery of Costs due to Change in Law) Rules, 2021 

Timely recovery of the costs due to change in law is having importance as the 

investment in the power sector largely depends upon the timely payments. At 

present the pass through under change of law is taking a lot of time, forcing the 
drying of the investment in the power sector. If payment is not made in time, it 

impacts the viability of the sector and the developers get financially stressed. If 
this is not addressed now, the investment will not come and the electricity 

consumers may face shortages of power once again. In order to address this issue, 

Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Timely Recovery of Costs due to 

Change in Law) Rules, 2021 on 22.10.2021. 

• Electricity (Promotion of generation of Electricity from Must-Run Power Plant) 

Rules, 2021 

----
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Ministry of Power has notified Electricity (Promotion of generation of Electricity 

from Must-Run Power Plant) Rules, 2021 on 22.10.2021 to help in promotion of the 

generation from renewable sources. This will ensure that the consumers get green 

and clean power and secure a healthy environment for the future generation. 

• Implementation of Phase-1 of Market Based Economic Despatch (MBED) 

With the objective of redesigning of present market mechanism for lowering the 

cost of power purchase to the Consumers, Framework for Implementation of 

Phase 1 of Market Based Economic Despatch (MBED) wherein mandatory 

participation by ISGS (Inter State Generation Stations) plants and voluntary 
participation by other generators, was communicated to CERC for 

implementation from 1st April, 2022. 

• Redesigning the Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) Mechanism 

Ministry of Power assent was given to make amendment in the existing 
Renewable Energy Certificate (REC) mechanism, in order to align the present REC 

mechanism with the emerging changes in the power scenario and also to promote 

new renewable technologies. 

• In the Union Budget 2022-23, the allocation for the Solar Energy Corporation of 

India (SECI), which is currently responsible for the development of the entire 

renewable energy sector, stood at INR 1,000 crores (US$132 million) 

• In the Budget, the government allocated INR 19,500 crore (US$ 2.57 billion) for a 

PU scheme to boost manufacturing of high-efficiency solar modules 

• In February 2022, Nepal and India agreed to form a Joint Hydro Development 

Committee to explore the possibility of viable hydropower projects 

• In November 2021, at the COP-26 Summit in Glasgow, Prime Minister 

Mr. Narendra Modi made a promise to increase India' s renewable energy 

generation capacity to 500 GW, and meet 50% of India's energy needs through 

renewable means by the year 2030 
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• In October 2021, the Ministry of Power announced a new set of rules aimed at 

reducing financial stress for stakeholders and safeguarding timely cost recovery 

in electricity generation 

• In August 2021, the Indian government proposed new rules for the purchase and 

consumption of green energy. The latest rules are a part of government measures 

to encourage large-scale energy consumers, including industries, to leverage 
renewable energy sources for regular operations 

• In July 2021, to encourage rooftop solar (RTS) throughout the country, notably in 
rural regions, the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy plans to undertake 

Rooftop Solar Programme Phase II, which aims to install RTS capacity of 4,000 

MW in the residential sector by 2022 with a provision of subsidy 

• In July 2021, the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE) gave the go 
ahead to NTPC Renewable Energy Ltd., a 100% subsidiary of NTPC, to build a 

4,750 MW renewable energy park at the Rann of Kutch in Khavada, Gujarat. This 

will be India's largest solar park to be developed by the country's leading power 

producer 

• In June 2021, India launched the Mission Innovation CleanTech Exchange, a 
global initiative that will create a whole network of incubators across member 

countries to accelerate clean energy innovation 

• In June 2021, Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Ltd. (!REDA) 
invited bids from solar module manufacturers for setting up solar manufacturing 

units under the central government's INR 4,500 crore (US$ 616.76 million) 

Production Linked Incentive (PU) scheme 

• In April 2021, the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) and CEEW' s Centre for 

Energy Finance (CEEW-CEF) jointly launched the India Renewables Dashboard 

that provides detailed operational information on renewable energy (RE) projects 

in India 

• In April 2021, the Ministry of Power (MoP) released the draft National Electricity 

Policy (NEP) 2021 and has invited suggestions from all stakeholders such as 
Central Public Sector Undertakings, Solar Energy Corporation of India, power 
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transmission companies, financial institutions like Reserve Bank of India, Indian 

Renewable Energy Development Agency, HDFC Bank, ICICI Bank, industrial, 

solar, and wind associations and state governments 

• The Government of India has announced plans to implement a US$ 238 million 

National Mission on advanced ultra-supercritical technologies for cleaner coal 
utilisation 

• Indian Railways is taking increased efforts through sustained energy efficient 
measures and maximum use of clean fuel to cut down emission level by 33 % by 

2030 and 

• The government has spent US$ 4.63 billion on hydroelectric projects to provide 
electricity to villages in Jammu and Kashmir from 2018-21. 

Road Ahead 

The Government is committed to increased use of clean energy sources and is 

already undertaking various large-scale sustainable power projects and promoting 

green energy heavily. In addition, renewable energy has the potential to create many 
employment opportunities at all levels, especially in rural areas. India' s renewable 

energy sector is expected to attract investment worth US$ 80 billion in the next four 

years. About 5,000 compressed biogas plants will be set up across India by 2023. 

In 2022, India's renewable energy sector is expected to boom with a likely 

investment of US$ 15 billion this year, as the government focuses on electric vehicles, 

green hydrogen and manufacturing of solar equipment. 

It is expected that by 2040, around 49% of the total electricity will be generated by 
renewable energy as more efficient batteries will be used to store electricity, which 

will further cut the solar energy cost by 66% as compared to the current cost. Use of 
renewables in place of coal will save India INR 54,000 crore (US$ 8.43 billion) 

annually. 

As per the Central Electricity Authority (CEA) estimates, by 2029-30, the share of 

renewable energy generation would increase from 18% to 44%, while that of thermal 

is expected to reduce from 78% to 52%. 
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The Government of India wants to develop a 'green city' in every state of the 

country, powered by renewable energy. The 'green city' will mainstream 

environment-friendly power through solar rooftop systems on all its houses, solar 

parks on the city's outskirts, waste to energy plants and electric mobility-enabled 
public transport systems. 

Capital and Debt Structure: 

(a) Authorized Share Capital -------------~--~-~-------1 
During the year under review, there was no change in the authorized share capital of 

your Company. The authorized share capital of your Company as of March 31, 2022 
was INR 44,00,00,000 divided into 4,40,00,000 equity shares of INR. 10/- each. 

(b) Issued and Paid-up Share Capital 

During the year under review, there has not been any change in the issued and paid­

up share capital of your Company. The issued and paid-up equity share capital of 

your Company as of March 31, 2022 was INR 42,85,00,000 divided into 4,28,50,000 

equity shares of INR 10/- each. 

(c) Fully Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) 

During the year under review, there was no change in the issued Fully Compulsorily 

Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) issued by your Company. The quantum of FCCDs 

was INR 1,28,49,00,000/- divided into 12,84,90,000 FCCDs of INR. 10/- each. 

(d) Issue of 4,990 Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of INR 10,00,000/- each on 
private placement basis 

During the period under review, for the purpose of refinancing of existing financial 
indebtedness of the Company, availed from the existing lenders and promoter loans, 

payment of capital creditors and various purpose in the normal course of business, 
your Company had issued and allotted 4,990 Secured, Redeemable, Rated, Listed, 

Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) of the face value of INR 10,00,000/- each on 
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March 2, 2022 aggregating up to INR 4,99,00,00,000/- on a private placement basis 

with 6.75% p.a.p.q coupon rate for a tenure of 2 years 363 days. Further, Catalyst 

Trusteeship Limited is the Debenture Trustee to the issue. 

Further, NCDs are secured by way of mortgage/ charge against certain assets of the 
Company and the asset cover in respect of these NCDs exceed hundred percent of 

the principal amount of the said NCDs as of March 31, 2022. 

(e) Listing of Non-Convertible Debentures on Stock Exchange 

The Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company were listed on the wholesale debt 

market (WDM) of BSE Ltd on March 7, 2022. 

(f) Credit Ratings 

The credit rating details of the Company as on March 31, 2022 was as follows: 

Rating Agency Type of Instrument Credit Rating 
CRISIL Ratings Limited Non-Convertible Debentures CRISIL AAA/Stable 

Disclosures under SEBI Operational Circular: 

Large Corporate Disclosure 

As the maturity of NCDs is for a period of more than one year and have a credit 
rating of CRISIL AAA/Stable, the Company would be considered as a 'Large 

Corporate' as per SEBI1s Operational Circular dated August 10, 2021. Further, there 

was no incremental borrowing by the Company during the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022. 

Further disclosures applicable to green debt securities under SEBI Operational 

Circular is attached herewith as Annexure - I. 
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Amendment in Articles of Association of Company: 

During the year under review, to safeguard the interests of the debentureholders 

including right to appoint the nominee director in accordance with terms agreed 

under the debenture trust deed executed with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited, new 
Articles 22B and Article 64A were inserted to incorporate the agreed terms. 

Deposits: 

The Company has not accepted any public deposits within the meaning of Section 73 

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 and any amendments thereto. 

Details of Subsidiary Companies/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures: 

Your Company continues to be the Subsidiary Company of A vaada Energy Private 

Limited. Further, the Company has no subsidiary or associates or joint ventures 

during the said period. 

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

During the year under review, Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi and Mr. Gopal Goel were 
appointed as the additional directors of the Company w.e.f December 9, 2022 and 

would hold office till the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company. Your 

Directors recommend appointment of Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi and Mr. Gopal 

Goel as the Directors of the Company at the ensuing annual general meeting. 

Further, Mr. T.R. Kishor Nair and Mr. Ravi Kant Verma had resigned as the 

Directors of the Company w.e.f December 10, 2021, and Ms. Kirti Singh had resigned 

from the position of the Company Secretary w.e.f December 22, 2021. 

Ms. Aadishri Sahasrabuddhe was appointed as the Company Secretary of the 

Company w .e.f December 23, 2021 and she was designated as the Compliance 

Officer of the Company w .e.f February 10, 2022 in compliance with the provisions of 
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Regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. 

Thus, the present Directors of the Company are Mr. Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi and 

Mr. Gopal Goel and Ms. Aadishri Sahasrabuddhe is the Company Secretary and 
Compliance Officer of the Company. 

Number of meetings of the Board of Directors and attendance of Directors: 

Ten (10) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the period viz on June 
23, 2021, September 18, 2021, October 14, 2021, December 9, 2021, December 23, 2021, 

January 31, 2022, February 10, 2022, February 17, 2022, March 2, 2022 and March 31, 

2022 and the intervening gap between any two meetings was within the period 

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013: 

Directors Mr. T.R Mr. Ravi Mr. Rajesh Mr. Gopal 
Kishor Nair Kant Verma Bihari Dwivedi Goel 

Date of 
Board Meetings 

June 23, 2021 Attended Attended NA NA 

September 18, 2021 Attended Attended NA NA 

October 14, 2021 Attended Attended NA NA 

December 9, 2021 Attended Attended NA NA 

December 23, 2021 NA NA Attended Attended 

January 31, 2022 NA NA Attended Attended 

February 10, 2022 NA NA Attended Attended 

February 17, 2022 NA NA Attended Attended 

March 2, 2022 NA NA Attended Attended 

March 31, 2022 NA NA Attended Attended 

% of attendance 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Board Evaluation: 

Since the Company was a private limited company during the period from April 1, 
2021 till March 31, 2022, the disclosure on annual evaluation of the performance was 

not applicable to the Company. 

----
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directors: 

The Company had constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was as follows: 

1. Mr. T.R Kishor Nair 

2. Mr. Ravi Kant Verma 

One (1) meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of 
Directors was held during the year viz on June 7, 2021 and the attendance of the 

Committee members was as under: 

Directors Mr. T.R Kishor Nair Mr. Ravi Kant Verma 
Date of 
CSR Committee 
Meetings 

June 7, 2021 Attended Attended 

% of attendance 100% 100% 

Further pursuant to the amendment to the prov1s1ons of Section 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 read with the 

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, if the 

annual CSR obligation of any Company does not exceed Rupees Fifty Lakhs, the 
Company would no longer fall under the criteria for constituting and continuing 

with the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. Thus, The Corporate Social 

Responsibility Committee of the Board was dissolved by Board members at their 

meeting held on September 18, 2021 and it was decided that the functions earlier 

delegated to the said Committee would be discharged by the Board going forward. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives: 

The Board of Directors had granted its approval to undertake its Corporate Social 

Responsibility (CSR) activities through Avaada Foundation, Avaada Group Section 8 

Company incorporated for purpose pursuant to the collaboration agreement for 

-----
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Corporate Social Responsibility activities executed between Avaada Foundation, 

Avaada Ventures Private Limited and Avaada Energy Private Limited and and Deed 

of Adherence executed between Avaada Foundation, Avaada Ventures Private 
Limited, Avaada Energy Private Limited and the Subsidiaries of Avaada Energy 

Private Limited including the Company. 

In accordance with the proposed CSR Action Plan during the financial year 2021-22, 

A vaada Foundation undertook the social development activities in Surendranagar 
District of Gujarat and in Mumbai City of Maharashtra in areas of empowerment 

and preventive healthcare/ covid support as under: 

Sr Focus Areas CSR Programs Locations Lives 
No Touched 

1 Preventive Food grains & ration kit Mumbai, 1800 

Healthcare/ support to daily wages Maharashtra 

Covidcare workers & marginal 
Support community during 

second wave of Corona 

pandemic 

2 Empowerment Promotion of "Skill Surendranagar, 24 

India" movement in rural Gujarat 

villages by opening Nav 
Kiran Stitching Centre 

The annual report on CSR activities undertaken by A vaada Foundation on behalf of 

the Company is attached herewith as Annexure - II. 

Auditors & Auditors' Report: 

As, M/ s Goyal Malhotra & Associates, the Chartered Accountants (FRN: 008015C), 

the existing Statutory Auditors had vacated the office of Statutory Auditors on 

March 16, 2022 due to A vaada Group's consolidated financial statements being 
audited by Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants and specified 

percentage of total assets/revenue of the Group needs to be audited by them, 

M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the Chartered Accountants (FRN: 015125N), were 

----
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appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 

conclusion of the extra-ordinary general meeting held on May 18, 2022 until the 

conclusion of the ensuing annual general meeting of the Company. 

Further, it was proposed to appoint M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, the Chartered 

Accountants (FRN: 015125N) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further 
period of five years i.e. from the financial year 2022-23 to 2026-27 on such 

remuneration as may be agreed upon by the Board of Directors and the Auditors at a 

later date. M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants have expressed 

their willingness and eligibility to act as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 
the said period. 

Further, your directors recommend appointment of M/ s Deloitte Haskins & Sells, 

Chartered Accountants as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for further period 

of 5 years at the ensuing annual general meeting. 

The notes to the financial statements referred to in the Auditors' Report are self­
explanatory. Further, there are no reservations, adverse remarks or qualifications in 

the Auditors' Report and therefore do not call for any clarification or comments 

under Section 134 of the Companies Act 2013. The Auditor' s Report is enclosed with 

the financial statements in this Annual Report. 

Internal Auditor: 

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Acquisory Consulting LLP as 
the Internal Auditors of the Company to conduct the Internal Audit for the Financial 

Year 2021-22, and the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for 

conducting internal audit was approved by the Board of Directors. 

Secretarial Auditor: 

Your Company has appointed M/s Deepak A. Variya & Co., Practicing Company 

Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number: 10111) as the Secretarial Auditor to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 in 

accordance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

----
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the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Amendment Rules, 2020. The draft Secretarial Audit Report for said Financial Year 
in the prescribed Form MR-3 is appended as Annexure-111 and there were no 

qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks given by the Secretarial Auditor in the 
Secretarial Audit Report of the Company. 

Further, your Directors have appointed M/s Deepak A. Variya & Co., Practicing 

Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice Number: 10111) as the Secretarial 

Auditor of the Company by the Board for the Financial Year 2022-23. 

Annual Return: 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the 

draft Annual Return as on March 31, 2022 in Form No. MGT-7, is available on the 

Company's webpage and can be accessed at the we blink: 

https://avaadaenergy_com /solarise/ 

Governance Policies of the Company: 

Whistle Blower Policy 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism and adopted Vigil Mechanism 

Policy that enables the directors and group employees to bring to the attention of the 
management any issue which is perceived to be in violation of or in conflict with the 

fundamental business principles of the Company. 

The Vigil Mechanism provides for (a) adequate safeguards against victimization of 
persons who use the Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Board of Directors 

of the Company or any authorized person in appropriate or exceptional cases. 

The details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy is uploaded 

on the webpage of the Company at: 
h ttps://avaadaenergv.com/solarise/img/Annexure%204%20%20Vigil%20Mechani 

srn %20Policy-Solarise.pdf 

------
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of your Company has 

approved and adopted Corporate Social Responsibility Policy on April 1, 2021, 
pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. The 

purpose of CSR Policy is to articulate what CSR means to the Company, kind of 
projects to be undertaken, identifying broad areas of intervention, approach to be 

adopted to achieve the CSR goals and monitoring mechanism. This Policy is aligned 

with the Company's objectives, principles and values, for delineating its 

responsibility as a socially and environmentally responsible corporate citizen. 
The details of establishment of CSR Policy is uploaded on the webpage of the 

Company at: 

https://avaadaenergy.com/solarise/img/Annexure%205-CSR%20Policy-Solarise.pdf 

Policy on Preservation and Archival of Documents of the Company 

Further, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 9 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, the Company has adopted the Policy on 
Preservation and Archival of Documents to aid the employees in handling the 

documents efficiently either in physical form or in electronic form. It covers various 
aspects on preservation of the documents, archival of the same and safe 

disposal/ destruction of the documents. The Policy on Preservation and Archival of 

Documents is uploaded on the webpage of the Company at: 

https: // avaadaenergy.com/ solarise / img/Preservation %20and %20Archival %20of% 
20Documents A vaada %20Solarise %20Energy. pdf 

Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information (Fair Disclosure Policy) --------"------------------
During the year under review, pursuant to Regulation 8(1) of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015) read 
with Regulation 51(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, the Company has established the Code of Practices and Procedures for 

Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information to ensure timely, fair and 

-----
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adequate disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information ("UPSI"). The Fair 

Disclosure Policy is uploaded on the webpage of the Company at: 

https://avaadaenergy.com/solarise/img/Fair%20Disclosure%20policv Avaada%20 
Solarise%20Energy.pdf 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings 
and Outgo: 

The provisions of Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules 2013 regarding disclosure of particulars with respect to 

Conservation of Energy and Technology absorption are not applicable to your 
Company. 

Further, there is foreign exchange outgo on account of import of services of 

INR 0.024 million. 

Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given and Securities 
provided: 

Your Company is engaged in prov1s1on of infrastructural facilities, therefore, 

exempted from compliance of applicable provisions of section 186 (2) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties: 

All the contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties were in 

compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. 

There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions with related 

parties during the year under review. 
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Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the 
Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report: 

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the Financial 
Year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2022 to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of this report which effects the financial position of the Company. 

Details of significant and Material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or 
Tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company's operations in 
future: 

There are no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 
tribunals that would impact the going concern status of the Company and the 

Company's operations at present and in future. 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards: 

The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings and 
General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, as 

applicable to the Company. 

Risk Management: 

The Company is managing its risks through well-defined internal financial controls 
and there are no risks that may threaten the existence of the Company. The 

Company has formulated entry level controls for risk management in the Company. 
It identifies the components of risk evaluation and the principles based on which the 

controls have been formulated. 

Internal Control System: 

Your Company has in place adequate internal control system with reference to 

adherence to policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 
of business, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 

-----
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accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of 

reliable financial information. 

Directors' Responsibility Statement: 

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm that: 

1. in the preparation of annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2022, the 
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material 

departures from the same; 
2. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 

made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and 

of the loss of the Company for that period; 

3. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 for 

safeguarding the assets of the Company an.cl for preventing and detecting fraud 

and other irregularities; 

4. the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; and 

5. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Acknowledgements: 

Your Board wishes to place on record their appreciation for the valuable support and 
assistance received by your Company from all the stakeholders and look forward to 

their continued support. 

Date: May 30, 2022 
Place: Noida 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~/ 
Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi 
Director 
DIN: 09133422 

fu_ 
Gopal Goel 
Director 
DIN: 09133443 
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Annexure-1 

Disclosures applicable to Green Debt Securities under SEBI 
Operational Circular 

1. List of project(s) and/ or asset(s) to which proceeds of the Green Debt Securities 
have been allocated/invested including a brief description of such project(s): 

The amount of INR 4,990 millions raised by issuance of green debt securities has 
been fully allocated for re-financing of "Eligible Green Projects" as defined in the 

Green Bond framework i.e. for existing 50x3 MW Solar electricity generation 

facilities/Plant of the Company operational in the State of Karnataka wherein 100% 

of electricity generated from the said plant is derived from solar energy resources. 

Thus, the Company has utilized the proceeds from the issue of green debt securities 

viz. non-convertible debentures ('NCDs') for the purpose for which these proceeds 
have been raised. 

2. Environmental impact of the Project(s) in which the proceeds from issue of 
Green Bonds have been invested: 

The said Solar Plant had a significant impact in terms of avoidance of emissions of 

carbon dioxide (CO2) apart from other air pollutants associated with energy 

generation. The CO2 emission reductions on account of said Solar Plant of the 

Company during the Financial Year (FY) 2021-22 are shared below: 

Project Type Capacity Annual Generation Projected Emission 
(in MW AC) (MWh/year) reduction (tC02,lyear) 

During FY 2021-2022 during FY 2021-2022 

Solar PV Project 50x3 3,20,060 2,97,784 

~ ::::::-.::::::::-...:::::-~-::.. ---
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3. Methods and the key underlying assumptions used in preparation of the 
performance indicators and metrics and compliance with globally accepted 
standard(s) for measurement of the environmental impact: 

All the data presented in the above table is based on the monthly factual data 
collection. For CO2 eq emission reduction, combined margin grid emission factor is 

taken from CO2 baseline database version 17, October 2021, published by Central 
Electricity Authority (CEA), Government of India. 

The Company follows the International Financial Corporation (IFC) performance 
standards, 2012 to comply with environmental and social management system. 

Date: May 30, 2022 
Place: N oida 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

y/ 
Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi 
Director 
DIN: 09133422 

z,i. 
Gopal Goel 
Director 
DIN: 09133443 
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Annexure - II 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities as 
prescribed under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

The CSR policy of the Company was adopted by the Board on August 4, 2020 and it 
focuses on Education, Empowerment, Environment and Health and other CSR 
activities and the said policy has been amended by the Board on March 22, 2021 
effective from April 1, 2021 pursuant to the amended provisions of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021. 

The main objective of the CSR Policy is to lay down guidelines and make CSR as one 
of the key business drivers for sustainable development of the environment and the 
society in which the Company operates in particular and the overall development of 
the global community at large. 

2. Dissolution of CSR Committee of the Board: 

The details of the composition of the CSR Committee of the Board and the meetings 

held during the year is as follows: 

Sr. Name of Directors Designation Number of Number of 
No. meetings of meetings of 

CSR Committee CSR Committee 
held during the attended during 
year the year 

1 Mr. T.R. Kish or Nair Non-Executive 1 1 
Director 

2 Mr. Ravi Kant Verma Non-Executive 1 1 
Director 

Pursuant to the amendment to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 

2013 vide the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 read with the Companies 

(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, if the annual CSR 

obligation of any Company does not exceed Rupees Fifty Lakhs, the Company 
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would no longer fall under the criteria for constituting and continuing with the 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. It was thus decided to dissolve the said 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board and the functions earlier 

delegated to the said Committee would continue to be discharged by the Board 
going forward. 

3. The web-link for CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 
disclosed on the website of the company: 

https: // av aadaenergy .com/ solarise / img/ Airnexure % 205-CSR % 20Policy-Solarise.pdf 

~- The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of 
sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014: 

The Company at present is not required to carry out impact assessment in pursuance 
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014. 

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7i 
of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and 
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any 

The Company does not have any amount available for set off in pursuance of sub­
rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 
2014. 

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 73.86 million 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 
1.48 million 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the 

previous financial years: Nil 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): INR 1.48 million 

------
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any fund 
VII as per 

Financial CSR Account as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

(2) 

Year 2021-22 section 135(6). 
(INR in 
millions) 

Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of 
transfer Fund transfer 

1.5 NIL N .A. N.A. NIL N.A. 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not 
Applicable 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial 

year: 
(3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Name of the Item from Loe Location of the Amou Mode Mode of 
Project the list of al project nt of implementation -

activities area spent imple Through 
in (Yes for the mentat implementing agencv 
schedule /No State District project ion- Name CSR 
VII to the (INR Direct registrat 
Act in (Yes/N ion 

millio o) number 
ns) 

Promotion of Empower No Gujarat Surendr 0.008 No Avaada CSR000 
"Skill India" ment anagar Foundation 02025 
movement in 
rural villages 
by opening 
Nav Kiran 
Stitching 
Centre 
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Mumbai 1.492 No 

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: INR 0.0002 million 

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable 

CIN:U40300DL2018PTC338280 

Registered Office: 
910/19. Suryakiran, 

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +011-68172100 
E: avaadasolarise@avaada.com 

www.avaadaenergy.com/solarise/ 

Avaada CSR000 
Foundation 02025 

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 1.50 million 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any 

Sr. No. Particulars Amounts (INR 
millions) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 1.48 
company as per 
section 135(5) 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 1.50 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year 0.00 

[ (ii)-(i)] 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 0.02 

programs or activities of the previous 
financial years, if any 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding 0.00 
financial years[ (iii)-(iv)] 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 

preceding financial year(s): Not Applicable 

in 
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AVAADA SOLARISE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
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N. S. Phadke Marg, Andheri (E), 
Mumbai • 400069 

T: +91-22-6140 8000 

CIN: U40300DL201BPTC33B280 

Registered Office: 
910/19, Suryakiran, 

Kaslurba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi - 110 001 

T: +011-68172100 
E: avaadasolarise@avaada.com 

www.avaadaenergy.com/solarise/ 

:J..O. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to 
the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not 
Applicable 

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): N.A. 

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: N.A. 

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such 

capital asset is registered, their address etc.: N.A. 

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete 
address and location of the capital asset). N.A. 

[1. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the 
average net profit as per section 135(5) : 

The Company has spent its CSR obligation in full during the Financial Year 2021-22. 

Date: May 30, 2022 

Place: Noida 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~/ 
Rajesh Bihari Dwivedi 
Director 
DIN: 09133422 

fr.L 
Gopal Goel 
Director 
DIN: 09133443 



Annexure - III 

us DEEPAK A. VARIYA & CO. 
Practising Company Secretary 

Deepak A. Variya (B.Com., F.C.S.) LLB 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2022 

{P11 rs11,111 I to sec/ion 2Qtl.(1) of !ht' Co111pn11ics Act, 201.3 anri RuleNo.9 of ll1e Companies 
(Appoi11twe11t and Re111unemtion Perso/111el)R11/es, 2014/ 

To, 
The Members, 
AVAADA SOLARISE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40300DL2018PTC338280 
Registered office: 910/19, Suryakiran, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi - 110001, India 

We have conducted the secretarial audit ·:,f the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by AVAADA SOLARISE ENERGY 
PRIVATE LIMITED (hereinafter called "the company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manne r that provided us areasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, •.ve hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31•1 March, 2022 (" Audit Period") complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board­
processes and compliance-mechanism in place Lo the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hl~re inafle r: · 

We have examined the books, papers, minule books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3151 March, 2022 
according to Lhe provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 20]3 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 

the reunder; 
(iii) rhe Depositoril~S i\ct, ]996 and the Rer,ulahons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of f-oreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings (Not applicable to the 
Company during Audit Period) 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') to the extent applicable to the 
Company: 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share 13ased Employee 13enefits) 
Regulations, 2014; 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009; and 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 1998; 

(vi) In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company, the below­
mentioned other law is specifically applicable to the Company: 
a) Electricity Act, 2003; 
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We have also examined compliance with the npplicable clnuses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (SS--1) and 
Gencrnl Meeting (55-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We have relied on information/ records produced by the Company during the course of my 
audit and the reporting is limited to that extent. 

We further report that 

13oard of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The chnnges in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is Biven to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and in case of shorter 
notice, consent of board members was obtained and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining furU1er information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and 
for meaningful participation a t the meeting. 

Majority decision is ca rried tllrough while the dissenting members' views, if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the audit period Company has issued and allotted 4990 rated, 
listed, secured, redeemable, non-convertible debenlures of a face value of INR. 10,00,000/ ­
each aggregating lo INR. 4,99,00,00,000/- on a Private Placement basis. 

We further report that during the audit period tllere were no following specific 
events/ actions having a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of tlle above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

(i) Public/ preferentia l issue of shares / sweat equity, elc. 
(ii) Redemption / buy-back of securities 

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in purs uance to Section 180 of the Companies 
Act, 2013(The Company being a private company is exempt from compliance of the 
provisions of Section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013). 

(iv) Merger/ amalgamation / reconstruction, etc. 
(v) Foreign technical collaborations. 
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This report is to be read with our letter of even d a te, which is annexed as ANNEXURE-1, 
and it forms an integral part of this report. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 

UDIN: f008830D000437753 
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For DEEPAK A. VARIYA & CO. 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

?.? Deepak A. Variya 

Proprietor 

C.P. No. 10111 
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ANNEXURE-I 

To, 
The Members, 
AVAADA SOLARISE ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40300DL2018PTC338280 
Registered office: 910/19, Suryakiran, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, 
New Delhi -110001, India 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

2. We have fo llowed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The 

verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correcl11ess and appropria teness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verifica tion of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secre tarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted / will conduct the affairs of the Company. 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 30th May, 2022 
UDIN: F008830D000437753 
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For DEEP AK A. V ARIY A & CO. 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 

Deepak A. Vari ya 
Proprietor 
C.P. No. 10111 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members of Avaada Solarise Energy Private Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Chartered ACrnvntants 
7'" Floor, Bvildir.g 10. Tower B 
DLF Cyber City Complex 
OLF City Phase· ll 
Gurugram - 122 002 
Harya11a, India 

Tel: +91124679 2000 
Fax: +91 ':24 679 2012. 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Avaada Solarise Energy Private limited 
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information (together referred to as "the financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 
ln the manner so required and give a true and fair view ln conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its loss, total 
comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (!CAI) together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the !CAi's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. We have determined that there are no 
key audit matters to communicate in our report. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

• The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board's report, but does not inc!ude the 
financial statements and our aud,tor's report thereon. 

• Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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• In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

• If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and 

changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 

for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 
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• Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) 
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 
so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act. 
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 
in "Annexure A". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the A~ditor's Report in accordance with 
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best 
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence, reporting under this section 
is not applicable to the Company. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. Refer note 36(b) to the financial statement. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 27(b) to the financial statement, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, 
including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 27(b) to the financial statement, no funds have been received by 
the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding 
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule ll(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not 
proposed final dividend for the year. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 
(Firm's Registration No. 015125N) 

1,t· ~ 
Vikas Khu rana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

(UDIN : 22503760AJWTXV9143) 

l]C.,. 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
(Referred to in paragraph l(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial report111g of Avaada Solarise Energy 
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in coniunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and tl1e Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, ,s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial r·eporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial ,·eporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 111 reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of tl1e company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance re9arding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements . .-:::===::, 

,· ask;IJ 
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material m isstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the r isk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our informat ion and according to the explanations given to us, the 
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as 
at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in t he 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the I nstitute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 015125N) 

Vikas Khurana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

(UDIN: 22503760AJWTXV9143) 
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date) 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books 
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, we state that 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 

(BJ As the Company does not hold any intangible assets, reporting under clause 3(i)(a)(B) 
of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the 
Management in accordance with a program of verification, which in our opinion, provides 
for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were 
noticed on such verification. 

(c) Based on our examination of the registered sale deed and lease agreement for land on 
which building is constructed and registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the 
title in respect of self-constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable 
properties (other than the properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed in the financial 
statements included in Property, Plant and Equipment, are held in the name of the 
Company as at balance sheet date. 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) during the year. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company 
as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder 

(ii) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable 
intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the coverage and procedure of such verification by the Management is appropriate having 
regard to the size of the Company and nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% 
or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical 
verification of inventories applicable, when compared with books of accounts. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, at any given point of time of 
the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital from banks or financial 
institutions and hence reporting under clause (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
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(iii) (a) The Company has not provided any loan, advances i11 nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year. Further, the Company along with three other fellow 
subsidiaries has issued non-convertible debentures during the year aggregating to INR 
14,400 million, for whicl1 the Company along with other three fellow subsidiaries have 
provided guarantee on jointly and severally basis to the debenture trustees. Details are as 
given below: 

/Amount in INR million) - ----- . 
Loans Advances in Guarantees on Security 

nature of behalf of fellow 
loans subsidiaries 

Aggregate amount 
granted I provided 
during the year: 

- Others Nil Nil 9,410 Nil 

Balance outstanding as 
at balance sheet date in 
respect of above cases: 

- Others Nil Nil 9,410 Nil 
____ ,. 

- - ·- ~- ·-----

The Company has not provided any loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year. Further, 

(b) During the year the guarantees provided to companies are not prejudicial to the Company's 
interest. Further, the Company has not made any investments and has not provided any 
loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any other entity during the year. 

(c) The Company has not provided any loan, advances in nature of loan or security to any 
other entity during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii)(c), (d), (e) and (f) is 
not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 in respect of guarantees provided, as applicable. Further, the Company has not 
granted any loans, made investments or securities to any other entity during the year. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amount which are deemed to be deposits. 
Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under 
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the books of 
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) 
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost 
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, 
prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the Company. 
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete. 

y,as 
..._e, 

.:::, 
!E Charter 
(!) 
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(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Income-tax, 
duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to the Company have 
generally been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities though there has 
been a delay in respect of remittance of Income-tax dues. 

We were informed that the provisions of Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 are not 
applicable to the Company. 

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident 
Fund, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as 
at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 

(b) There are no statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been 
deposited on account of disputes as on March 31, 2022. 

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were 
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year. 

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) The company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or 
government or any government authority. 

(c) To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company 
were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were 
obtained. 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes 
by the Company. 

(e) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during t11e year 
and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

(f) The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year 
and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, rnoneys 
raised by way of debt instruments during the year have been, prima fac,e, applied by the 
Company for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised 
moneys by way of Initial public offer or further public offer during the year. 

(b) The Company has made private placement of non-convertible debentures during the year 
For such issuance of non-convertible debentures, the Company has complied with the 
requirements of Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the funds ra,secl have 
been, prrma facie, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the 
funds were raised. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares (fully or partly or optionally) during the year. 
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(xi) (a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraucl by tlie Company and no material fraud on the 
Company has been noticed or reported durmg the year. 

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during t11e year and up to 
the date of this report. 

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received 
by the Company during the year and up to the date of this report. 

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause J(x1i) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies 
Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related 
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and the nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures. 

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with any of its directors or directors of its holding company, or persons 
connected with such directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xvii) 

(xviii) 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no core investment 
company within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the finanoal year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and 
we have taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing 
auditors. 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based 
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of rneet!ng its liabilities existing 
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall clue within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one ye,ir frorn the balance sheet date, will get 

,,.-;c:::==:O:d:..ischarged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

y,.ask;,, 
.,_rt, ,!' 

·!:: 'I' 
0 Chartered Cf) 
© Accountants (1) 

0 "::: 
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(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund 
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the 
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year. 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 30, 2022 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 
Chartered Accountants 

(Firm's Registration No. 015125N) 

rVR,u~ 
~ 

Vikas Khurana 

Partner 

(Membership No. 503760) 

(UDIN: 22503760AJWTXV9143) 
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llal;rnce Sheet as at :\larch .H. 2022 
(i\11 amounts in INR millit)ns unless stated otherw ise) 

P:irticulars 

ASSETS 

~011 ... cu rrcnt assco 
Propeity. plant and equipment 
Right or use assets 
Financial assets 

Other financial assets 
Non-current tax assets ( Net) 
Total non-current assets (Al 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial assl!LS 

Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other bank balances 
Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Total current assets (8) 

Total assets (A+Bl 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
Equity share capital 

lnstnnncnts entirely equity in nature 
Other equity 
Total equity (C) 

LIABILITIES 

!\on-current liabilities 
f-inancial liabilities 

BmTOwings 
Lease liability 

Ddcrrcd tax liabilities (net) 
Provisions 
Total non-current liabilities (D) 

Current liabilities 
f-inancial liabilities 

Borrowings 

Trade payables 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small cnte11>riscs 

Lease liability 

Other financial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Provisions 

Total current liabilities (El 

Tot:1I equity :md liabilities (C+D+E) 

Sec accompanying notes fanning part of the financial statements 

\'otc 

3 
4 

5 
5(:i) 

6 

7 
8 

8(a) 
S(b) 

S(cl 

8(dl 
9 

10 

II 
12 

13 
I 3(a) 
I 3(b) 

14 

15 

16 
16(a) 
16(b) 

16(c) 

I 6(d) 

17 
18 

1-42 

Vikas Khurana 
Partner 

A,d;~ ,.rnh,Odbe 
Company secretary 
Pince: Noida 

Date : May 30, 2022 
Place: Gurugrnm 

As at 
,1arch 31, 2011 

6. l 72.70 
284. 18 

25 1.9 I 

4.61 
6,713.40 

17.6 1 

260.58 
62.06 

19 1.40 

23. 10 
554.75 

7,268.15 

428 .50 
1,284.90 

109.40 

1,822.80 

4,746.93 

297.53 
48.09 

9.)0 

5,101.65 

246.74 

1.90 
40.47 

30.50 
19.75 
4.34 

343.70 

7,268.15 

As at 
'1arch .ll, 2021 

6.428.49 

26X.63 

375. 1 S 

5. 10 
7,077.40 

21.37 

178.02 
11 3.9 1 

1.73 
6. 15 

32 1. 18 

7,398.58 

428.50 

1,284.90 
143.61 

1,857.01 

4,835.00 
273.20 

77.95 
8.34 

5,194.49 

229.39 

2.27 

70.81 
22.54 
2 1. 11 

0.96 

347.08 

7,398.58 

For and on behalf of Bo:ird of Directors 

} 

. V 

ujcsh Hilrnri · · · 

Director 
DIN: 09 )33 
Place: Noid, 

Date : May 

133443 

\>ida 
:1ay 30, 2022 
·, 
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CIN:- ll-'03U0DL2018PTO38280 
Statement of Profit :rnd Loss for the year ended l\l:1rch 31. 2U22 

(A ll a mounts in INR millio ns unkss s tated otherwise) 
Particulars 

Income 
Rt!vcnuc from operations 
Other income 
Total income (A) 

Expenses 
Employee bendits expense 
Finance costs 
D.:prcciation and a111m1isation expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses (B) 

Profit/(loss) before tax (C=A-B) 

Tax expense: 
Current tax 
DcfeJTed tax charge/ (credit) 
Total tax expenses (D) 

Profit/(loss) afler tax (E=C-D) 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassifi ed to profit or loss: 

Rc-mc,1suremenl o f liabilitics/(asscts) 
Income tax effect of above 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (F) 

Total comprehensive incomc/(loss) for the year, net of tax (G= E+ F) 

Earnings per sha re: 
(a) Basic ( INR) 
(b) Diluted ( INR) 

Sec accompanying notes forming pm1 of the financial statements 

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells 

1~·~~~ 
Vikas Khurana 
Pm1ner 

Date : May 30, 2022 
Place: Gumgmm 

~ Aadishri Vmay Sahasrabuddhe 
Company secretary 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30, 2022 

Note 

19 
20 

2 1 
22 
23 
24 

14 

25 

1-42 

For the year e nde d For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 M arch 31, 2021 

929.74 935.60 
30.30 ?7.?0 

96ll.04 962.80 

4.17 3.89 
640.57 543.00 
27 1.36 263.78 
107.98 82.42 

1,024.08 893.09 

(64.04) 69.71 

(29.85) 39.65 
(29.85) 39.65 

(34.19) 30.06 

(0.03) (0.03) 
0.01 0.0 1 

(0.02) (0 .02) 

(34.21) 30.04 

(0.20) 0 .1 8 
(0.20) 0. 18 

For and o II behalf of Board of Directors 

~3:L 
Rajcsh Bihari Dwivedi Gopnl Goel 
Dirl'Ctor 
DIN: 09 133422 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30. 2022 

Director 
DIN : 09 133443 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30. 2022 
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Statement of Cash Flows for the y,•ar ended ~larch .l I. 2022 

(All a111uu111s in INR mill io ns unless slnicd oth~rn isc} 
Particulars 

A. Cash llow from opcratiug activities 
l'rolit/(Loss) bd 'or~ tux 
Adjustments 
Finance costs 
Processing ICcs 
Interest on lease liability 

Interest on decommissioning liability 
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 
Depreciation on right or us.: asset 
I merest income on bank deposits 
Exchange gain 
l'rolit on sale or investments 
Employee be nc lit expense 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Adjustment for working capital c hanges 

Changes in security deposits 
Changes in inventory 
Changes in trade receivables 
Changes in other assets 
Changes in trade payables 

Changes in other financial liabilities 
Changes in provisio ns 
Changes in other liabilities 

Cash generated from operating activities 
Income lax paid (net o r income tax refund) 
Net cash now from operating activities 

B. Cash now from im-csting activities 

Purchase o f properly, plant and equipment (including capital 
advances and payables for capital expenditure) 
Investment in mutual fund 
Proceeds li'om sale o f investments 
Investment in bank deposits 
Proceeds li'om bank deposits 
Interest received 

Net cash used in in,•esting activities 

C. Cash now from financing activities 

Proceeds from non-c urre nt borrowings 
Repayment o f non-c tme nt borrowings 
Proceeds from current borrowings 
Repayment o f current bo rrowings 

Payment for processing fees or non-current borrowing 
Payment o f lease liab ility 

Interest and other bo1Towing costs paid 
Net cash used in financin11 ac tivities 

Net increase/(decreasc) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivaknts at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: In current accounts 
Cash 11nd cash equivalents 

Sec accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements 1-42 

Vikas Khurana 
Partner 

Date : May 30, 2022 
Place: Gurugram 

~ 
Aadishri Vinay Sahasrahuddhe 
Company secretary 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30, 2022 

For the y ear ended 
March 31, 2022 

As al 

(MO-I) 

585.70 
12.21 
3 1.84 

0.81 
255.93 

I 5.43 
(21.86) 

(0. 13) 
(0.36) 

0 .04 
825.58 

(0.50) 
3.76 

(82.56) 
( 16.95) 
(30 .58) 

(0.12) 

3.38 
702.0 1 

0.49 
702.50 

(0.14) 

( 142.99) 
143.35 

(1 ,645 .15) 
1,577.52 

23.59 
(43.82) 

4,990.00 
(5,056.10) 

18.13 

{ 1.53) 
(44.6 1) 

(30.50) 
(585.92) 

(710.53) 

(5 1.85) 
113.9 1 

62.06 

March 31, 2022 

62.06 
62.06 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

As at 

69.7 1 

5 16.86 
1.20 

2-1. 19 
0.75 

25-1.72 

9.06 
(27.20) 

0. 16 
849.45 

1.06 
3.7 1 

71.66 
( 1.85) 

(53.04) 
( 1.29) 

0.03 
( 1.86) 

867.87 
(2.05) 

865.82 

(29.34) 

(1,55 1.06) 
1,354.2 1 

25.74 
(200.45) 

(83.26) 
11.58 
(0.9 1) 

(22.77) 

(516.92) 
(612.28) 

53.09 
60.82 

113.91 

March 31, 2021 

11 3.91 

113.91 

For and on behalf of Board of Dil'ectors 

~l; 
4 Bihari D, ·· . 

Director 

DIN: 09133422 
Place: Naida 
Dale : May 30, 2 

3 

. 2022 
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.-\rnada Solarise Energy Prirnte Limited 
CIN:- ll-rn300DL2018PTOJ8280 
Statement of Changes in NJnity for the year ended l\larch JI. 2022 
(Al l amounts in INR millions unkss stat..:tl other\\'isc) 

(a) E11uih· Share C:milal 
Particulars 
Balance us nt April 01, 2020 
Changes in Eauitv Slmrc Ca1,ital due to nrior p,:riod <:ffors 
RL>stated balance al the beginning or the previous reporting p..:riod 
Changes in L'Quitv shan:c,lllital (rerer note 10) 
Balance at March 31, 2021 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due lo prior period eJTors 
Restated balance at the beginning of the previous n:po11ing period 
Chanees in equity share capital (refer note 10) 
Balance at March 31, 2022 

(b) Instruments entirelv eQuitv in nature 
Particulars 
Balance as nt Aoril 01, 2020 
Movement during the year 
Balance at March 31, 2021 
Movement during the year 
Balnnc<? at March 31, 2022 

(c) Other equity 
Particulars 

Ba lane<? as at April O I, 2020 

Pro lit for the vear 
Other comprehensive loss. net of tax 
Balance ns at March 31, 2021 
Loss for the vear 
Other comprehensive loss. net of tax 
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve 
Debenture nxlernotion reserve created 
Balance at March 31, 2022 

Sec accompanying notes fonning pmt or the linancial statements 1-42 

For Deloit!<? Haskins & Sells 

Retain<?d Earnings 

113.57 
30.06 
(0.02) 

143.61 
(34.19) 

(0.02) 
( 109.44) 

-
(0.04) 

Numh<'r Amount 
4,28,50,000 428.50 

- -
4.28.50.000 428.50 

- -
4,28,50,000 428.50 

- -
4.28.50.000 428.50 

- -
4,28,50,000 428.50 

Number Amount 
12,84,90,000 1,284.90 

- -
12,84,90,000 1,284.90 

- -
12,84, 90,000 1,284.90 

Debenture Redemption Total oth<?r equity 
Reserve 

- 113.57 
- 30.06 
- (0.02) 

- 143.61 
- (34. 19) 

- (0.02) 

- ( 109.44) 
109.44 109.44 
I09.44 109.40 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors 

/~:"''Jb ~ --­~=:;::::::;:,,...._ Vikas Khurana 
Partner 

~ 
Aadishri Vinay Sahasrabuddh<? 

¥/ 
Rnjcsh Bihari Dwivedi 
Director 

Gopal Goel 
Director 

Date : May 30, 2022 
Place: Gurugram 

Company SL-crctaiy 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30, 2022 

DIN: 09133422 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30, 2022 

DIN: 09133443 
Place: Noida 
Date : May 30. 2022 



66

Amada Solarise Energy Prirnte Limited 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended i\lare h 31, 2(122 
(A ll amounts in INR millions unkss s1a1i.:d 01h.::rwisi.:) 

I. Corporate information 

Avaada Solarisc En.::rgy Private Limited (''the Company'") is a private Company domic iled in India and incorporated on Scpti.:mbcr 05, 20 18 under the 
provisions or the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company is subsidiary o r Avaada Energy Private Limited. The registered o ffice of the Compa ny 

is located at New Delhi and is engaged in the business of generation o r so lar power. The Company has 150 Mw solar power· project at Pavagada, 
Karnataka. 

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of generation o r Solar power and operation & maintenance of power pla nts. 

2. Significant accounting policies 

2. 1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 20 13, read together with Rule 3 of the Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 20 15, Companies (Indian A ccounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 20 16 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis and the historical cost convention. Histo rical cost is generally based 
on the fair value o f the consideration g iven in exchange fo r goods and services. For accounting po licy on fair value refer note 2.2 (q). 

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies 

a) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting p eriod. Although these 
estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in 
the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods. 

b) Current versus non-current classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilitit.-s in the balance sheet based on currenl/non-current classification. 

An asset is treated as current when it is: 

- expected 10 be realized or intended to sold or consumed in nonnal operating cycle; 
- held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
- expected lo be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or 

- cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged o r used to seule a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 
All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is treated as current when it is: 

- expected to be settled in nonnal operating cycle; 
- held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

- due to be settled within twelve months a fter the reporting period; or 

- there is no unconditional right to de fer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities. 

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization/selllement in cash and cash equivalents. T he Company 
has identified twelve months as their operating cycle for classification of their current assets and liabilities. 

c) Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated deprec iation and accumulated impainnent losses, if any. The cost of Property, plant a nd 

equipment comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than subsequently recoverable 
from tax authorities), any directly allributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and borrowing costs allributable to acquisition of 
qualifying assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use. 

Cost also includes replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition cri teria are met. 
When significant parts of plant and equipment arc required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific 

useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if 
......-:::::==1liz.....,"'ognilion criteria are satis fied. All o ther repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The presc, 1e expected 

he decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for ~ 
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Property, pl.1111 ,md L'<(Uipmcnl acquired and put lo use l'or projL'CI purpose and capitalised and depreciation thereon is indudcd in the p rojc-cl cost till the 
project is ready for its inten<kd us<:. 

Capital work in progress (CWIP) 
Assets in the course of construction an: capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress (CWI P). Al the point when an asset is operating at 

mmmgcmcn1·s intendcxl use. the cost of construction is transferred lo the appropriate cmcgory of properly. plant and equipment and dcpn.-ciation 
commcnCL'S. Where an obligation ( legal or constructive) exists lo dism:mlk or remove an asset or restore a site 10 its former condition at the end of its 
useful life. the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling. removing or restoring the site is capitalized :1long with the cost o f acquisition or 
construction upon completion and a corresponding liability is recognized. 

d) De-recognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits arc expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition o f the asset (calculated as the difft:rencc between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount o f the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is der~'Cognizcd. The residual 
values. useful lives and methods of depr~'Cialion of property. plant and equipment arc reviewed at each linancial ye,1r end and adjusted prospcclivcly, if 
appropriate. 

e) Depreciation 
Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment on a straight line basis so as 10 expense the cost less residual value over the ir estinrnted useful 
liv~-s based on a technical evaluation. The estimated useful lives and residual values are review~'{! at the end of each reporting period. with the effect of 
any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 
Type of asset 
Buildings & Improvement (Solar Power Generating System) 
Plant and equipment (Solar Power Generating System) 
Plant and equipment (Other ) 
Vehicles 

Oflice equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 

Useful lives 
25 years 
25 years 
15 years 
10 years 
5 years 
IO years 

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition. 

Leasehold improvements to office facilities arc depreciated over the shorter of the lease period or the estimated useful life of the improvement. 

The assets' residual values and useful lives arc reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there arc indicators for impaim1en1. and adjusted 
prospectively. 

Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic bcnelits embodied in the asset arc considered 10 modify 
the depreciation period or method. as appropriate, and arc treated as changes in accounting estimates. The deprec iation expense on tang ible assets is 
recognised in the Statement of Pro tit and Loss unless such expenditure fonns part of carrying value of another asset. 

0 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition al cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their 
fair value al the date o f acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles. excluding capitalised development costs, arc not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in 
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and asst,ssed for impainnenl whenever there is an indication that the 
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful li fe arc reviewed at 
least al the end of each reporting period. ChangL'S in the expected useful Ii fc or the expected pallern of consumption of future economic benefits 
cmbodilxl in the asset arc considered lo modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure fonns part of 
carrying value of another asset. 

Intangible assets with indefinite usel'ul lives are nol amortized, but are k'Sled for impainnenl at each year end either individually or al the cash generating 
unit level. 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset arc measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset and arc recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is dcrecognised. 

ny assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thai is. if the contract convey 
sset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 
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As a lessee 

The Ccnnr any applies a single recognition and measurement arproad1 for all leases and leases o r low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease 
liabilities 10 make lease ray111e111 and right to use the underlying assets. 

i) Right-of-use assets 

The Company reeognizL'S right-of-use assets al the co111111cnce111e111 dale of lease (i.e., the date or underlying the asset is available for use). Right-01:usc 
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated dcrrcciation and imrairment losses, and adjusted for any remcasurcmcnl or lease liabilities. The cost of 
right-01:use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made al or before the 
commencement date less any lease, incentives received. Right-01:use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term: 
The cost re flects the exercise o f a rurchase option, as if ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Comrany at the end or the lease term. Derreciation 
on right or use assets is calculating using the estimated li re of the asscl. 
The right-of-use asset arc also subject to imrairment. 

ii) Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the (}resent value of lease rayments to be made over the lease 
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivables, variable lease payments 
that dcrend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease rayments also include the exercise price of a 
purchase ortion reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of renalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term re lleets the 
Company exercising the option to tenninate. Variable lease·payments that do not derend on an index or a rate are recognized as expense (unless they are 
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest 
rate imrlic it in the lease is not readily determinable. Alier the commencement date, the amount or lease liabilities is increased to rellect the accretion or 
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in 
the lease tenn, a change in the lease payments (e.g., change to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to detennine such lease 
payments ) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

iii) Short-term leases and leases ok low-value assets 

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-tenn leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term or 12 months or less from the 
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to lease of o flice equipment 
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-te rm leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as exrense on a straight-line basis 
over the lease tenn. 

h) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly altributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get 
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part· of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the reriod they occur. 

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings lo the extent they arc regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost less any interest income earned on temporary 
investment of specific borrowings pending the ir expenditure on qualifying assets. 

Borrowing cost includes interest exrense as per effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or 
receipts over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised cost of a financial liability after considering 
all the contractual tenns of the financial instrument. 

The Company determines the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation as the actua l borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during the 
period, to the extent that an entity borrows funds specifically for obtaining a qualifying asset. In case if the Compariy borrows generally and uses the funds 
for obtaining a qualifying asset, borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation are detennined by applying a capitalisation rate to the exr enditures o n that 
asset. 

i) Financial instruments 

A financia l instrument is any contrac t that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity, 

Financial asset 

Financ ial assets are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the financ ial assets on initial recognition. Transac tion costs directly a11ributable to the acquisition of financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. . - · . __ -••· 

All recognised linancial assets arc subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair valu 191!,~::::::: lassification of the 
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Financ ial assels 1ha1 arc held wi1hin a business model whose oqjc..:livc is lo ho ld asscls in order 10 collecl contrac111al cash !lows: and 1hc conlrac·tLrn l 1-:nns 
o r lhe ins11111ne111 give rise on sp~"Cilicd dates 10 cash flows 1ha1 arc solely pay111cn1s of principal a nd intcrcsl on lhc princ ipal am o11n1 oulstanding are 
subsequently measured al 111nor1iscd cosl (cxccpl lor linanc ial assets 1lrn1 are designaled as al FVTPL on ini lial recognilion). 

Financ ial assc1s thal are held within a business model whose obj .:ctivc is achieved bo1h by eolkc1ing conlraclual cash !lows a nd selling lin,mcial assets; 
and lhe comrac lual terms o r the instrument give rise on spccilied dates lo cash !lows !hat arc solely payments or principal and interesl on 1he princip,il 

amount oulstanding are subscqucnlly measured al !'air value through 01her comprehensive income (except for linancial asse1s that arc designal~'<I as al 
FVTPL on initial recognition). 

All o ther financia l assels are subsequently measured al fair value. 

The e ffective inlerest method is a me1hod of calculaiing the amorlised cos I o f a linancial asset and of alloca1ing interest income over the relevanl period. 

The effective inlerest rate is the ralc that exactly discounls estimated fulure cash reccipls through lhc expected life of lhe fina ncial assel, or, where 
appropriate, a shoner period, to 1he nel carrying amount on initial recognition. Income is r~'Cognised on an effective in1eres1 basis for linanc ial asscls other 

lhan those financ ial asse1s classified as al FVTPL. ln1eres1 income is recognised in the Statement o r Prolil and Loss and is included in 1he '01her income' . 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the con1rac1ual righ1s 10 the cash flows from lhe asset expire, o r when it transfers the linancial assel and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition o r a linancial asset in i1s e ntirety, the dirle rence 
between !he asset 's carrying amount and lhe sum or the consideration received and receivable is recognised in !he Stalemcnl of Profit and Loss. 

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet dale whether a linancia l asset o r a group of linanc ial assels is impaired. Ind AS I 09 requires expected credit 
losses lo be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises c redit loss allowance al li letime expected c redit loss model for lrade receivables. 

The Company's financial assels comprise of cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivable, interest accrued on bank deposits, and othe r 
receivables. These asse1s are measured subsequently at amonised cost. 

Financial Liabilities 

Financial liabili1ics arc recognised when an entity becomes a party 10 the contractual provisions of the inslrumenls. Financial liabilities are initially 

measured al fair value. Transaction cos ls that are d irectly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at 
FVTPL) are deducted from the fair value of the fi nancial liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly allributable to the acquis ition of 
financial liabilities at FVTPL arc recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is inc luded in ' linance costs'. 

Financial liabili1ies are classified as a t FVTPL when the linancial liability is held for trnding or it is dt'Signated as al FVTPL all o ther financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured al amortised cos I using lite effective interest rate method or al FVTPL. 

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amonised cost of a financial liability and o f allocating interest expense and other d irectly 
attributable costs over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated contracled future cash payments through 

the expected life or the financ ial liability to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. The expected life of a financial liability can be a shorter period 
when the contractual arrangements include prepayment provisions and when such prepayments are expected. 

Expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial liabilities other than those financial liabilities classi lied as at FVTPL. Interest expense is 
recognised in profi t or loss and is included in the 'Finance costs' line item. 

Non-refundable fees and related direct costs associated with the o rig ination of borrowings are de ferred and netled against borrowings and recognised 
using e ffective interest rate method. 

The Company <lerecognises financial liabili1ies when, and only when, the Company's obligations arc d ischarged, cancelled or have expired. The difference 
between the carrying amount of lhe financ ial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

The Company's financ ial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables a nd o ther payables. These liabilities are measured subsequently at amonised 
cost. 

j ) Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that ii is probable Iha! the economic benefi ts will flow to the Compan ·~=--:,::::::::,.;,. an be reliably measured, 
f when 1he payment is being made. 
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Sale of power 

Revenue arrangement 

The Company·s n:vcnue arrnngemcnl is bast'tl on long 1cr111 PPA wi1h ils customer ( Bangalore Elc.:1rici1y Supply Company Limi1ed ( "BESCOM")). As per 
1he PPA the Company's performance obligation is 10 supply solar power al 1he mies spcci licd in the PPA. 

Recognition 

Revenue from sale of power is recognized when persuasive evidence or an arrangement cxisls, lhe Ice is lixed or dclcnninable, solar energy kilowatts are 
supplied and collec1ability is reasonably assured. Revenue is based on 1hc solar energy kilowalls actually supplied to cuslomers multiplied by 1he rate per 
Kilo-watt hour agreed 10 in the respective PPAs. The solar energy kilowalls supplied by 1hc Company are validated by 1he customer prior to billing and 
recognilion or revenue. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value or 1he consideration received or receivable net o r 1hc estimated variable considerations 

As per the tenns o f the PPA, the variable considera1ions include: 

I. Expec1ed compensalion for non-fullilmcnl or minimum supply commitments - The Company is obliged to sell minimum solar power in a year as per the 
PPA. In case of dcfaull of aforesaid obligation, the Company is liable to pay compensation to customer as per the terms of the PP A. As a l 1he year end the 
Company has eslimated that no such penally will be paid by the Company and accordingly no adjustmc'nt has been made in revenue. 

2. Deviation settlement mL'Chanism charges which is imposed for over drawl/ injection and under drawl/injection from the schedule for the generators 

Income from carbon emission reduction 

The Company recognized carbon emission reduc tion "CER" income in 1hc period when it is reasonably certain that lhe Company will be able 10 comply 
with the conditions necessary to obtain these carbon emission reduction. Company recognise CER value at average price o r open contract fo r sale of CER 
with customers. 

Sale of goods 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of owm:rship have been transferred 10 the buyer, recovery of the 
consideralion is probable, the associated cost can be estimaled reliably, there is no continuing effective conlro l or managerial involvement with the goods, 
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. 

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed. Revenue from operations is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account con1ractually defined lerms of payment a nd excluding taxes or 
duties collecled on behalf of the government. 

Interest income 

Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using e ffec1ive interest rate method. 

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will now to the Company and the amount of income can 
be me,1sured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effoctive interest rate applicable, 

which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected lifo of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on 
initia l recognition. [merest income is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Dividend income 

Dividend [ncome is recognised when the Company's right lo receive the amount has been established. 

k) Foreign currencies 

These Financial Slatements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company's functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of 1he 

primary economic environmenl in which a company operates and is nonnally the currency in which the company primarily generates and expends cash. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at lhe date the transaction first qua Ii fies for 
recogni lion. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. 

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in 

tenns of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 1ransactions. Non-monetary items measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates al the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on 

translation of non-monetary ilems measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on -~-==---::,,.. e of the item (i.e., 
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or pr gnized in other 

nsive income or profit o r loss, respective ly). 
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Foreign exchange diffcrencc on foreign currency bt>rmwings. scttl.:ment gain/ loss and lair value gain/loss on dcriv,11ivc contract relating lo borrowings are 
accounted and disclosed und.:r linancc cost. Such exchange differem:e docs not include foreign exchang.: dilT.:rcnce regarded as an adjustment 10 the 
borrowings cost and capitalised with cost or asscts. 

I) Income taxes 

Tax expense represents the sum o r cu1Tent tax and del'erred tax. Current and del'erred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss, except when 
they relate 10 items that arc recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and dcrcrrcd tax arc also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect or previous years. 

Subject to exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all deductible temporary differences at the reporting date 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, on carry forward or unused tax credits and 
unused lax loss: 

• deferred income tax is not recognised on the initial recognition or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
or the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

• deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liabil ity is sellled, 
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted o r substantively enacted at the reporting elate. Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or 
loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity). 

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). 
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI o r directly in equity. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting dale and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sunicient 
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its 
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. 

m) Segment reporting 
An operating segment is a component or the company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including 

revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the company's other components, and for which discrete financial information is available. 
All operating segments' operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company's chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be 

allocated to the segments and assess their perfonnance. Based on the financial information reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in deciding 
how to allocate the resources and in assessing the perfonnance of the Company, the Company has determined that it has a s ingle operating and reporting 
segment, i.e., sale or solar power. The Company's principal operations are located in India. Accordingly, the Company earns its entire revenue from India. 
All of the Company's non-current assets are located in India." 

n) Earnings per share 

Bas ic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable 
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction or an equity share 

to the extent that they arc entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number 

of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share split 
(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average 
number or shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effocts of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

o) Provisions, contingencies and commitments 
General 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of 

resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made or the amount o f the obligation. When 
the Company expects some or all or a provision to be reimpursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separa · :~1$iit-ni'tlll;:,w the reimbursement is 

certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and loss net of a 
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Ir the d'tcc t of the lime value o r money is material. provisions are disc.:ounlt'(I using a current pre-lax rate that rellec1s. when appropriate, the risb spccilic 
to the liability. When discounting is used. the increase in the provision clue to the passage of ti me is recognized as a li nance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed al the end o f each reporting period and adjusted to rellecl the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outllow of 
rt-sources would be nx1uircd to scllle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 

Contingent assets / liabilities 

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is no longer a continge111 asset, and is 
recognised as an asset. 

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is-

a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be conlinned only by the occurrence or non-occurrence o f one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or 
b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because: 

it is not probable that an outllow of resources embodying economic benelit will be required to settle the obligation; or 
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability . 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 
o r more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 

Commitme nts include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of as.sets. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period. 

Provisions for onerous contrncls arc recognized when the expected benelit to be derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable 
costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. 

p) Impairment of non-financial assets 

Cash generating units as defined in Ind AS 36 on impainnent of assets are identified at the special purpose interim balance sheet date. At the date of 

Specia l Purpose Interim Balance Sheet, if there arc indications o r impainnent and the carrying amount of the cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and value in use), an impairment loss is recognized. The canying amo unt is reduced to the 
recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impainncnt loss in the Statement of Proli t and Loss. The impainnent loss recognized in the prior 
accounting period is reversed to the extent of increase in the estimate of recoverable amount. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised 
carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life. 

q) Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants al the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabili ty takes place either: 

- In the principal market for the asset or liability 

- In the absence of a princ ipal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal o r the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

T he foir value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset o r liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability lo generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

· Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurement is observable 
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· Level 3 - Valuation tedrniqucs for which the lowest level input that is signilicanl lo the li1ir v,ilut! mt!asuremenl is unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that arc recognized in the lim1111.:ial statements on a rL'CUrring basis, the Company determines whether trnnslcrs have occurred 
between kvcls in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowt-st level input that is signilicmu to the fair value mcasurcmcnl as a whole) 
at the end of each reporting period. 

For the purpose of lair value disclosures, the Company has dclennined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis or the nature, characteristics and risks 
of the asset or liability and the level of the lair value hierarchy as explained above. 

This note summarises accounting policy for lair value. Othl!r fair value related disclosures arc given in the relevant notes. 

r) Inventories 

Inventories comprises stores and spare parts and is carried at arc carried al lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other 
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less costs necessary to make the sale. 

s) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash consists of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage. The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, 
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that arc subject lo an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three 
months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. 

Short-term bank deposits are made for varying periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. Cash and cash equivalents include 

bank deposits having original maturity period of less than three months. Bank deposits with original maturity period of more than three months but less 
than 12 mon1hs are presented as 'Other bank balances'. Bank deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months are presented as 'Other Financial 
assets'. 

t) Events occurring after the balance sheet date 

Impact of events occu1Ting after the spec ial purpose interim balance sheet dale that provide additional information materially effecting the detennination 
of the amounts relating to conditions existing at the special purpose interim balance sheet date are adjusted to respective assets and liabilities. 

u) Retirement and other employee benefits 

(i) Short-term obligations Liabilities for wages and salaries, including nonmonctary benefits that are expected to be selllcd wholly within 12 months after 
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees'services up to the end of the reporting 
period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

(ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations The liabilities for earned leave that are not expected to be selllcd wholly within 12 months are 
measured as the present value o f expected future payments to be made in respect o f services provided by employees up lo the end of the reporting period 
us ing the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the discount rates for Government Securities (G-Sec) at the end of the reporting 
period that have tenns approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Remeasurement as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Defined contribution plan 

Eligible employees o f the Company receive benefits from the Provident Fund, administered by the Government of India, which is a defined contribution 

plan. Both the employees and the Company make monthly contributions to the Provident Fund equal to a speci lied percentage of the eligible employees' 
salary. The Company has no further funding obligation under the Provident Fund, beyond the contributions elected or required to be made thereunder. 
Contributions to the Provident Fund by the Company are charged to expense in the period in which services are rendered by the covered employees. 

Defined benefit plan 
Employees are entitled to benefits under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ('the Gratuity Act') a defined benefit post-employment plan covering eligible 

employees of the Company. This plan provides for a lump-sum payment to elig ible employees at retirement, death, and incapacitatio n or on tennination of 
employment, o f an amount based on the respective employee's salary and tenure of employment. 

For defined benefit retirement plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being 
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet 

with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognised in the Statement of 
Pro lit and Loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined 
benefit liability or asset. 

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows: service cost (including current service cost and past service cost, as well as gains and losses on 
curtailments and s ettlements); net interest expense or income; and remeasurement. The Company presents service cost and net interest expense or income 
in Special Purpose Interim Statement of Profit and Loss in 'Employee benefits expense' . 
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v) Recent Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

Ministry ol'Corporatc Affairs ("'MCA .. ) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies tlncl ian Accounting standards) 
Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23. 2022. MCA amended lhc Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Ame ndment Rules. 2022, 
applicable from April I. 2022. as below: 
Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use 

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting Ii-om the cosl or properly. plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced 
while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in prolit or loss. 
The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition or its propeny, plant and equipment in its financ ial statements. 
Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs or Fullilling a Contract 

. The amendments specify that that 1he 'cost or fulfilling' a contract comprises the 'costs that relate directly to the contract'. Costs that relate directly to a 
contract can either be incremental costs of fullilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate 
directly to fullilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a claritication and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any signilicant 
impact in its linancial statements. 
Ind AS I 09 - Annual Improvements to Jnd AS (2021) 

The amendment clarifies which tees an entity includes when it applies the ' IO percent' test of Ind AS I 09 in assessing whether to derecognise a linancial 
liability. The Company does 110 1 expect the amendment 10 have any s ignificant impact in its financial statements. 
Ind AS 116 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the 
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment or lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives were 
described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 
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J. 

4. 

Property. plant and equipment 

Particulnrs Freehold land Building & Pinnt & \'chicles Furniture and Computer Office Total 
intprovt.•mcnts machinery Fixtures equipment's 

Grnss IJlock 

As at April 1, 2020 1.36 159.0-1 6.538.98 0. 18 6,699.56 
Adcli1ions during 1hc year 29.01 0. 13 0.20 29.34 
As at i\larch JI, 2021 1.36 159.0-1 6,567.99 O.lJ 0.18 0.20 6,728.90 
Additions during 1hc year 0.05 0.09 0.14 
As ut ,YI arch JI, 2022 1.36 159.04 6,567.99 O.lJ 0.18 0.05 0.29 6.729.04 

Accumulated depreciation 
As nt April I, 2020 1.09 44.59 0.0 1 45.69 
Deprccia1io11 for lhc year 6.04 248.65 0.02 0.01 '5-1.72 
As at March 31, 2021 7.13 293.24 0,03 0.01 300.41 
Deprecia1ion for the year 6.04 249.82 0.01 0.02 0.04 255.93 
As at March JI, 2022 13.17 543.06 0.01 0.05 0.05 556.34 

Net Block 
As at March 31, 2022 1.36 145.87 6,024.93 0.12 0.13 0.05 0.24 6,172.70 
As at March 3 I . 202 I 1.36 151.91 6,274.75 0. 13 0.15 0.19 6,428.49 

(i) Asscls charged againsl borrowings· Property, plant and equipmenl (except Freehold land and Building & improvements) of the Company are subject 10 a lirst charge 
10 secure the company's borrowings, refer note I 3(a). 

Impairment of Property, plant and equipment : 

The Company periodically evalua1es whe1her events have occurred that would render the property. plant and cquipmem's carrying value not recoverable. If such 
circumstances arise, lhe Company estimates the value in use by discouming the expected future operating cash flows 10 detennine impairment effect. During 1he curren1 
year. no such events have occurred tlrnt would render managemenl 10 evaluate impainncnl, however the Company has conducted impairment evaluation on value of 
property, plan! and equipment and estimated 1ha1 there is no impainnent during the period ending March 3 1, 2022. The recoverable amount or cash generating unit is 
determined by 1he Company's management, based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections and discount raic of 12.5% per annum. The 
recoverable amount has been calculated as per provis ions o f Ind AS 36. Cash flow projections arc based on 1he future saleable energy, tariff rate, expected operation and 
maintenance cost, 1ransmission cost and capi1al expcncli1ure. 

Carrying value of right of use assets 
Particulars Solur park Total 

facility on lease 

Gross carrying amount 
As at April I, 2020 357.54 357.54 
Adjustment for the year (65.55) (65.55) 
Additions during 1he year 
As at March 31, 2021 291.99 291.99 
Adjustment for the year 30.98 30.98 
Additions during 1he year 
As at March 31, 2022 322.97 322.97 

Accumulated depreciation 

As at April 1, 2020 14.30 14.30 
Depreciation for the year 9.06 9.06 
As nt March 31, 2021 23.36 23.36 
Adjustment for the year 2.51 2.51 
Depreciation for the year 12.92 12.92 
As at March 31 , 2022 38.79 38.79 

Net balance as at March 31, 2022 284.18 284. 18 
Net balance as at March 31, 2021 268.63 268.63 
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5. Non-curl'cnt financial assets 

S{a). Othcl' financial asscts 

rarticul:trs 

Security deposits 

Tenn deposits with original maturity or more than 3 months bul less than 12 months* 

Total 

As at 
l\larch31,2022 

0.53 

251 .38 

251.91 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

0.03 

375. 15 

375.18 
*Term deposits of INR. 251.30 ( March 3 1. 2021 INR 335.00) are under lien for the pu11,osc Debt Service Reserve i\ccounl as per requirc111c111 oflcndcrs. 
Reier note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

6. Non-current tax assets (Net) 

rarticulars 

Tax deducted al source and advance lax 
Total 
Refer note I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

7. Inventories 

rarticulars 

Stores and spares 
Total 
Reier nole I 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8. Financial assets 

8{a). Trade receivables 

rarticulars 

Tradc receivables 
Considered good - Secured 
Considered good - Unsecured 
Total receivables 
Rcfor note 13(a) for assets pledged as securities 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

4.61 
4.6( 

As at 
Marclt31,2022 

17.61 
17.61 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

58.40 
202.18 
260.58 

As at 
March 3 I , 2021 

5.10 
5.10 

As at 
March JI, 2021 

21.37 
21.37 

As at 
March JI , 2021 

58.40 
119.62 

178.02 

No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other ollicers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other 
receivable arc due from !inns or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member. 
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and arc generally on tem1s of 30 lo 90 days from the date of invoice. 

Trade receivables a!!em!! schedule as at March 3 I, 2022 
Particulars Outstandin!! for following periods from due date of payment 

Not due Less than 6 6 months -I 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total 
months year 

{i) Undisputed Trade 177.91 82.67 - - - - 260.58 
receivables - considered 

l!!ood* 
(ii) Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade . - - - - - . 
Receivables- considered good 

(v) Disputed Trade - - - - - - -
Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade . - - - - - -
Receivables - credit impaired 
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T ra( C l'CCCl\':l ) C'S ~H!.CIIH! SC IC( ll C ns :U-II I I I 1\1 I 'I 202 nrc 1 ~ I 
Particulars 

Not due Less than 6 
months 

(i} Undisputed Trade 173.20 0.45 
receivables - considered 

.good* 
(ii) Undispule<l Trade -
Receivables - which have 
significant increase in credit 
risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade -
Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv) Dispnled Trade -
Reccivablcs- consid,m:d good 

(v) Disputed Trade -
Receivables - which have 
signilicanl increase in credit 
risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade -
Receivables - credit impaired 

*Unbilled revenue oflNR 110.83 included in trade receivables 

S(b). Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulurs 

B:1lance wilh banks in cmTcnt accounls 
Total 

6 months -I 
\'car· 

4.13 

-

-

-

-

-

Outstandh12 for followin!! Deriocls from due date of pa vmcnt 
1-2 years 2-3 ~-cars 

0.24 

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

Mo1·c than J years 

-

-

-

-

-

-

As at 
Mnrch 31 , 2022 

62.06 
62.06 

Total 

178.02 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

-

-

-

-

113.91 
113.91 

For the puq,ose of Statement of Cash Flows. cash and cash cquivalenls comprise the following: 
Particulars 

Balance wilh banks in current accounts 
Total cash and cash equivalents 
Reier note l 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8(c). Other bnnk balances 

Particulars 

Balance wi1h banks in cu1Tent accounts 
Totnl 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

62.06 
62.06 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

191.40 
191.40 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

113.91 
113.91 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

*Current accounts o f INR. 149.70 ( March 31, 202 1 INR Nil) arc under lien for the purpose Debt Service Reserve Accounl and INR. 41.70 ( March 31 , 2021 INR 
Nil) arc under lien for the purpose of Addilional Reserve Account. 

Reier nolc l 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

8( d). Other financial assets 

Particulars 

(Unsecured, considered good) 
Interest accmcd on fixed dcposils 
Total 
Refer note l 3(a) for assets pledged as securities 

9. Other cu rrcnt assets 

Particulars 

Advances to suppliers 
Prepaid expenses 
Total 

As nt 
Murch 31, 2022 

As nt 
March 31, 2022 

17. 13 
5.97 

23.10 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

1.73 

1.73 

As nt 
March 31, 2021 

0.18 
5.97 
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I 0. Ee uih· share ca it:11 

rarticulars 

Authorised share capital 
Equity sharc:s or INR IO each 
Issued, subscribed and fully 

Equity shares of INR 10 each 

Total 
Refer note 13 (a) for share pledged as securities 

As at 
!\larch JI, 2022 

Number 
4,40.00.000 

4 ,28.50.000 

(a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the vear 

rarticulars 

Equity Shar·cs 
Al the commencement of the year 
Movements during the year 
At the end of the year 

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity share 

As al 
!\larch JI, 2021 

Number 
4.40.00,000 

4,28.50.000 

As :lt 
March JI. 2022 

440.00 

428.50 

428.50 

As at 
March31 , 2022 

Number 
4,28,50,000 

4,28,50,000 

,\sat 
March JI, 2021 

440.00 

428.50 

428.50 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

Number 
4,28,50,000 

4.28,50,000 

The Company has single c lass or equity shares having a par value or INR IO per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote p er share. In the event of 
liquidation o f the Company, the holder or the equity shares will be entitled lo receive remaining assets of the Company. afler distribution of preferential amounts. 
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

(c) Shares held by holding company 
Shares held by its holding company are as below: 

rarticulars 

Avaada Energy Private Limited* 

(d) rarticulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares 
As at Morch 31 , 2022 

Particulars Number % holding in the 

class 
Equity sharcsoflNR 10 each fully paid-up and held by: 
Avaada Energy rrivate Limited* 4 ,28,50,000 100% 

(e) Particulars of shareholding of promoters 
As at Mnrch 31, 2022 

Promoter name Number % holding in the 
clnss 

Avaada Energy Private Limited* 4.28,50,000 100% 

• One equity share held by Mr. Vince! Mittaljointly with Avaada Energy rrivale Limited. 

11. Instruments entirely equity in nature 

rnrticulars 

Fnlly compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs) 
Opening balance 
Movements during the year 
Closinn balance 

Fully compulsorily convertible debentures (FCCDs) 

As at 
March 31 , 2022 

Number 
4,28,50,000 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

Number 
4,28,50,000 

As at March 31, 2021 
Number % holding in the 

class 

4,28,50,000 I 00% 

As nt March 31 , 2021 

Number % holding in the 
class 

4,28,50,000 l00% 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1,284.90 

1,284.90 

As at 
March 31 , 2021 

1,284.90 

1,284.90 

During the previous years. the Company issued 12,84,90,000 FCCDs of INR 10 each at Nil coupon rate, Each FCCD is convc1t iblc into equity share of Rs. 10 each 
without any further ac t or application by FCCD holder. not late r than ten years from the dale of allotment . 
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12. Other e(Uit\' 

Particulars 

Retained earnings 
Opening balance 
Net prolil/(Loss) for the year 

hems or other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings 
Rcmeasurcmcnts or post-employment benelit obligation, net of tax 

Less - Transfer lo Debenture Redemption Reserve 
Closing balance 

Dchcnture Redemption Reser\'e 
Opening balance 

Debentun: redemption reserve created* 
Closing balance (B) 

Total (A+B) 

Asat 
March 31. 2022 

143.6 1 
(34.19) 

(0.02) 
( 109.44) 

(0.04) 

109.44 
l09.44 

109.40 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

113.57 
30.06 

(0.02) 

143.61 

143.61 

"Under the guidelines or Sec 71 (4) of the Companies Act read with Ruic 18(7) or the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, the Company has 
maintained the Debenture Redemption Rcse1vc Account lower of: 

(i) 15% or the amount of its NCD maturing during the year ending March 31. 2023 and 10% of the amount of remaining outstanding NCD issued, or 
(ii) accumulated amount of retained camings available at the end of the financial year. 

13. Non-current financial liabilities 

IJ(a). Long term borrowings 

Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Secured 
Non-convertible debentures 

Tern, loan from financial institutions 
Less: Current maturities oflong tcnn bo1Towings 
Total 

Summary of borrowings arrangement: 
Non-con\'ertible debentures amounting to INR 4,946.53 (March 31, 2021 : Nil). 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

4,946.53 

199.60 
4,746.93 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

5,033.89 
198.89 

4,835.00 

On March 2, 2022 the Company has issued 4,990 secured, redeemable. rated, listed non-conve1tible debentures "NCD" ha\'ing face value of lNR 1,000,000 each 
at fixed coupon rate of6.75% per annum payable quarterly (ctlective rate being 7.10% p.a.). at par aggregating to INR 4,990 million on private placement basis. 
These NC'Ds will be due for maturity on February 28, 2025. 
These NCDs arc secured by: 

a. First ranking charge on both present and future comprising of moveable lixed assets, cuJTent assets, all receivables, bank accounts, all reserves maintained by the 
Company in relation to the Debentures. 

b. first ranking security (by way of assignment/charge) over all the rights, title, interest, benefits, claims and demands under project documents, 
c. exclusive pledge over up to 99.99% of the total issued and paid-up share capital of the Company and 100% of the compulsory conve1tible debentures approved 
by its shareholders, 

d. Unconditional and i1Tcvocable corporate guarantee li·om FERMI Solar Fanns Private Limited, Avaada SataraMH Private Limited, Clean Sustainable Energy 
Private Limited (on a joint and several basis) in favour of the Debenture Trustee, in accordance with the tcnns of the Deed of Guarantee. 

As per Debenture trust deed, NCD arc also secured by first ranking charge on immovable properties oftl1e Company, inc luding project land, however as at March 
31 , 2022. the Company is in process of executing necessary documentations and fillings in tl1is regard. 

Term loan from RECL amounting to INR Nil (March 31, 2021: 5,056.10, nctoffprocessing fees amortisation 5,033.89). 

The loan has been fully re-paid on March 02, 2022 from proceeds of NCDs. Indian rnpee long tcnn loan from RECL cmTicd annual interest rate or -9.82% p.a. 
payable at the end of every Month. The loan was secured by first charge on entire movable properties, including plant and machinery, machinery spares, 
equipment's, tools and accessories, fumiturc, fixtures, vehicles, stocks an<l all other movable assets, present and future, all the present and future book debts, bills, 

receivables, monies including bank accounts, claims of all kinds and stocks including consumables and other general stores; first charge on all the rights , title, 
interest. benefits, claims and demand in project agreement (including amendments in project agreement), clearances ,any guarantee, wan-ant , letter of credit, 
perfonnance bond provided by any party to the project agreement, implementation support agreement (ISA) and land sub-lease agreement (LSAs) . The loan is also 
secured by short foll undertaking for fonding time cost ovemm and coqiorate guarantee issued by Avaada Energy Private Ltd and pied · · 
Company, held by Avaada Energy Private Limited (fonnerly known as Giriraj Renewables Private Limited) representing 51 % of paid up e 

.,,,._:::::::~~:,.,i s. Company has complied all loan covenant agreed. 
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IJ(h). Lease liahility 

Particulars 

Carried nl a mortised cost 
L.:ase liability 
Total 

1-1. Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 3 I , 2022 and M,1rch 3 I. 202 1 arc: 
(a) Profit or loss section 

Current tax: 
Current tax on 1>rolits for the year 

Adjustments in respect of current income tax o f previous year 
Total current tax expense 

Deferred tax charge/ (credit): 
Relating lo origination and reversal of temporary dilli:renccs 
Total deferred tax charge/ (credit) 

Tax expense/ (credit) recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss 

Other comprehensive income/ (loss) section 
Deferred tax charge (credit): 
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on definc:d benefit plans 
Income tax charged/ (credited) to other comprehensive income/ (loss) 

(h) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for March 
31 , 2022 & March 31 , 2021 

Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax 
At India' s statutory income tax rate of 25.17 % (March 3 1, 2021 : 25 .1 7%) 
Tax effect of amounts which arc not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 
EfTcct of expenses that arc not deductible in dctcnnining taxable profit 
Tax impact of processing fees charged to Statement of Profit and Loss due to prepayment ol'tenn loan 
Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year 
Total adjustments 

Income tax expense/ (income) 

(c) Deferred tax liabililv 

,\ s at 
~lnreh 31. 2022 

297.53 
297.53 

As at 
March 31. 2022 

(29.85) 
(29.85) 

(29.85) 

0.0 1 
0.01 

(64.04) 
(16.1 2) 

0.38 
(5.59) 
(8.53) 

(13.74) 

(29.86) 

Particulars As at 
April I, 2021 

Charge/ (credit) to Chargc/(crcdit) to 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (794.29) 
Carried fonvard losses and unabsorbed depreciation 714.62 
Provision for employee benefits 0.05 
Right of use asset 5.88 
Lease liability (440) 
Decommissioning liabilities 0. 19 
Non-convertible debentures 
Others 
Net Deferred tax liability (77.95) 

Particulars As at 
April I , 2020 

Statement of Profit other 
and Loss 

250.28 
(279.36) 

0.02 
77.4 1 

(86.96) 
(2.07) 
10.94 
(0. 11 ) 

(29.85~ 

Charge/ (credit) to 
Statement of Profit 

and Loss 

comprehensive 
income 

(0.0 1) 

(0.01) 

Chargc/(crcdit) to 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

As nt 
M:irch 31. 2021 

173.20 
273.20 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

39.65 
39.65 

39.65 

0 .0 1 
0.01 

69.71 
17.55 

0.90 

2 1.19 
22.09 

39.64 

As at 
March 3 1, 2022 

(1,044.57) 
993.98 

0 .04 
(7 1.53) 
82.56 

2.26 
( I 0.94) 

0. 11 
(48.09~ 

As at 
Mardi 31 , 2021 

Propc1ty, plant and equipment and intangible assets (52.39) 741 . 90 (794.29) 
Carried forward losses and unabsorbed depreciation 15.24 (699.38) 714.62 
Provision for employee benefits (0.04) (0.0 I) 0.05 
Right of use asset 3.60 (2.28) 5.88 
Lease liability (4.76) (0.36) (4.40) 

, mmissionin"' liabilities (0. 19) 0 .1 9 
erred tax liability 38.3 1 39.65 (77.95) 
1pany ollsets tax assets and liabilities if and only ifit has a legally enforceable tight to set off current tax assets and cmTen ti:rTcd 
s and ddi:rrcd tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority. 
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,\1·:rnda Solarise Ener!!I' Prirntc Limited 
CIN:- U-10300DL2018PTC3J8280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended l\larch JI , 2022 
(,\II amounts in INR millions unkss stated otherwise) 

15. Lonu term rovisions 

Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits 
Gratuity (rcli:r note 31) 
Leave cncashmelll 

Provision for asset retirement obligation 
Decommissioning liabilities 
Total 

16. Current financial liabilities 

16(a). Current borrowin s 

Particulars 

Carried at a mortised cost 
Unsecured 
CmTent maturities or long-lenn bon owings 
Loans from related pa11ies (refer note 30) 
Total 

Terms and conditions: 
(a) Loan from related parties 
Interest free loan from Avaada Energy Private Limited amounting to INR 43.58 (March 31, 2021: 30.47) 
Interest free loan from Avaada Clean Project Private Limited amounting to INR 3.44 (March 3 1, 202 1: 0.03) 
Interest free loan from Avaada RJHN Private Limited amounting lo INR 0.08 (March 31, 2021: Nil) 
Interest free loan from Avaada Sunce Energy Private Limited amounting to INR 0.05 (March 31 , 2021: Nil) 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0.08 
0.06 

8.96 
9,10 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

199.60 
47. 14 

246.74 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

0.08 
0.12 

8, 14 

8.3-1 

As at 
Mnrch31, 2021 

198.89 
30.50 

229.39 

The bonowing is in the nature of revolving credit facility as and when requested by the Company. It is interest-free and does not have a fixed tenure. The loan is 
repayable on demand. As al March 3 I, 2022, considering the size of the loan amount, the management has concluded that the related interest expense is immaterial 
and has not recognised any deemed equity. 

16(b). Trade avnblcs 

Particulars 

Trade payables 
Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises (refer note 37) 
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and ~,nail enterprises 
Totnl 

T d ra c oava b le al!einl! schedule as at arc I 2 22: M h3 0 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1.90 
40.47 

42.37 

Particulars Outstandinl! for following periods from due date of oavment 
Not due Less than I 1-2 years 2-3 years More titan 3 years 

vear 
Iii\ MSME - 1.90 - -
I/ii) Others - 40.47 - - -
(iii) Disoutcd dues - MSME - - - -
(iv\Disoutcd dues - Others - - - - -

Trade avablc a eina schedule as at March 31 2021: 
Particulars Outstandin for followin criods from due date of avment 

Not due Less than l 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years 
vcar 

i)MSME 2.27 
(ii) Others 70.8 1 
(iii) Dis utcd dues - MSME 
(iv Dis mted dues - Others 

:f;} 

As at 
March31,2021 

Total 

Total 

2.27 
70.8 1 

73.08 

1.90 
40.47 

-
-

2.27 
70.8 1 
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Anrnda Solarise Enen1,· Prirntc Limited 
Cl N :- ll-10300Dl.20 I l!PT0.,8280 
Noles to Financial Statcmrnts for lhe ~-ear ended l\larch JI. 2022 

(All ;unounts in INR millions unless stated otherwise) 

16(c). Lease liabilih• 

Parliculars 

Carried at amortised cosl 
Lease liability 

Total 

Reconcilintion of liabilities arising from financing activities pursuant lo IND AS 7 - Cash Flows 

As al 
l\ larch 31. 2022 

30.50 
30.50 

As at 
/\larch 31. 2021 

22.54 

22.5-1 

The table below details clrnngc in the Company"s liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non cash changes. Liabilities arising from 

financing activities arc those for which cash !lows where, or llltun: cash !lows will be. classilicd in the Company·s statement of cash !lows as cash !lows lrom 
financing activities. 

Movement for the vear ended March 31. 2022 
Particulars 

Lease liabilities 

Movement for the vear ended March 31. 2021 
Particulars 

Lease liabilities 

16(d). Other financial liahilities 
Particulars 

Carried at amortised cost 
Payables lo related pa,ties for purchase of capital assets (rclcr note 30) 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowinos 
Total 

17. Olher current linbilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 
Totnl 

18. Short term provisions 
Particulars 

Pro,•ision for employee benefits 
Gratuity (refer note 31 )* 

Leave cncashmenl** 
Total 
* Expressed in absolute - Gratuity INR 1, 189 (March 31, 2021 : INR 1,075) 

Opening balance 
as at April I . 2021 

295.74 

Opening balance 
as at April I. 2020 

359.87 

** Expressed in absolute - Leave cncashment INR 1,357 (March 31, 2021 : INR 2,539} 

Non-cash changes 

62.79 

Non-cash changes 

(41.36) 

Financing cash 
flows 

30.50 

Financing cash 
flows 

22.77 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

19.75 

19.75 

As at 

March 31, 2022 

4.34 
4.34 

As nt 
March 31, 2022 

Closing balance as 
at March 31, 2022 

328.03 

Closing balance as 
at March 31. 2021 

295.74 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

19.75 
1.36 

21.11 

Asat 
March 31, 2021 

0.96 
0.96 

As at 
Mnrch 31, 2021 
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..\\'a:td:t Sol:1rise 1-:ner!!,. Prirntc l.imited 
CIN:-U-103001>1.2018PTC3.,8Z80 
Notes to Financial Statements for the )'ear ended ~larch 31. 2022 
(All amounts in INR milliMs unbs stated l1the1wise) 

19. Rc\'cnuc from opcr:1tions 

Particulars 

Saks of power• 
Tot:11 

For the year ended For the ,·car ended 
~larch 31. 2022 March 31. 2021 

929. 74 935.60 
929.74 935.60 

• Revenue from sale of power is net off reb;Hc INR 9.13 (March 31. 2021 INR 4.09) .md deviation charges/(income) (net oil) INR (4.29) ( March 31, 2021 INR 8.61 

20. Other income 

Particulars 

Pro lit on sale or investments 

Interest income on deposits with bank 
Foreign Exchange gain 

Carbon credit sale 
Other income 
Total 

21. Employee benefits expense 

Particulars 

Salary. wages and bonus 
Contribution to provident fond and other funds 
Gratuity exp.:nsc (Refer note 31) 
Leave cncashmcnt (Refer note 31) 
Staff welfare 
Total 

22. Finance costs 

Particulars 

Interest costs on account of: 
Loan from financial institutions 
Lease liability (refer note 4) 
Non-convertible debentures 
Decommissioning liability 

Bank charges on bank guarnntcc 

Other borrowing costs 
Processing fees 
Otl1er borrowing cost 
Loan pre-payment charges 
Total 

23. Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Particulars 

Depreciation on property. plant and cqu ipmcnt 
Depreciation on right of use (refer note 4) 
Total 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March31,2022 Ma.-ch31,2021 

0.36 

21.86 
0. 13 
7.73 
0.22 

30.30 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

3.83 
0. 15 
0,03 

0.01 
0.15 

4.17 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

437.57 
31.84 

27.90 
0.82 

2.49 

22.21 

2.72 
115.02 
640.57 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

255.93 
15.43 

271.36 

27.20 

27.20 

For the yc:11· ended 
March 31, 2021 

3.42 
0.14 
0.05 
0. 11 
0.17 

3.89 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

509.40 
24.19 

0.75 

6.80 

1.20 
0.66 

543.00 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

254.72 
9.06 

263.78 
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,.\ rn:tda Sola rise Encr!!1 Prirntc Limited 
CIN:- U-IOJUOl>l.2018PTCJJ8280 
Notes to Fhrnnci:11 Statements for the year ended 1\1:irch JI. 21122 
(All am(lunts in INR millions unkss stated otherwise) 

2-1. Othcr expenses 

Particulars 

l'lan1 maintenance .:xpcnses 
Solar purk facility & land development 
Electricity sale exp.:nses 
Legal and prol~ssional 
Fees and subscription 
Project compliance charges 
Insurance expenses 
Auditor remuneration• 
CoqXJratc social rcs1XJnsibility expenses (refor note 26) 
Otlice repair and maintenance expenses 
Site overhead expenses 
Security expenses 
Travelling and conveyance 
M isccllaneous expenses 
Total 

* Auditors remuneration include 
Pnrticulnrs 

Statutoty audit fee (including GST) 
Total 

25. Earnings per share (EPS) 
Particulars 

Basic (INR) 
Diluted (INR) 
Basic earnings per share: 

For the year ended 
l\larch JI, 2022 

76.50 

1.48 
1.55 
0.05 
0.76 
8.96 
0.65 
1.50 
0.26 
0.23 
8.53 
1.57 
5.94 

107.98 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

0.65 
0.65 

For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2022 
(0.20) 
(0.20) 

The earnings and weighted a,•erage number of equit~• shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share arc as follows 
Prolit/(loss) for the year (34. 19) 

Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share from continuing operations (34.19) 

Weighted avcrngc number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 

Diluted earnings per share: 
Prolit/(loss) lor the year 

Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 

17, 13,40.000 

(34. 19) 
(34.19) 

For the ~·e,u· ended 
MarchJl,2021 

57.08 
2.90 
1.1 0 
0.86 
1.39 
0.41 
6. 14 
0. 18 
1.10 
0.24 
0 .15 
9.05 
1.56 
0.26 

82.42 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

0.18 
0.18 

For the year 
ended 

March31,2021 
0.18 
0. 18 

30.06 
30.06 

17,13,40,000 

30.06 
30.06 

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share reconciles with the weighted average number of equity shares used in 
the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows: 

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 

17, 13,40,000 
17,13,40,000 

17, 13,40,000 
17,13,40,000 

There is no potential equity shares that arc anti-dilutive and therefore not considered for the weighted average number of equity shares for the pmpose of diluted 
eamings per share. 
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A ninda Sol arise Encr21· Prirnte Limited 
C IN:- U-10300Dl.201!1PTC33!1280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the rear ended Mnrch 3 I. 2022 
(,\II .i111011nts in INR millions unless statcu othe,w iseJ 

26. Disclosure rcl:1ting to Corporate Social Responsihilit)' (CSR) Expenditure 

i\s per provis ions oJ' Section 135 oJ'the Companies Act. 20 13. the Company has to spend at least 2% oJ' the average pro lits oJ'the preceding three linancial ycars 
towards CSR. Accordingly. a CSR committee has been ltmned for canying out the CSR activities as per Scheduk VII o J' the Companks Act.20 13. 

Particulars 

(i) Amount required to be SJJCIII by the Company during the year 
(ii) Amount of expenditure incu.,-ed 
(iii) Shortfoll at the end of the year 
(iv) Total oJ'previous years shortfall 
(v) Reason for shm1foll 
(vi) Nature of CSR activities 

(vii) Details o f related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 
relation to CS R expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard* 
(viiii) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incmred by entering into a contractual 
obligation. the movements in the provis ion during the year 

For the )'car ended 
March 31 , 2022 

1.48 
1.50 

Not applicable 
Preventive 

healthcare/Covid 
care suppo,1 

1.50 

Not applicable 

l'or the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

I.OJ 
I.JO 

Not applicable 
Empowennent 

I.JO 

Not applicable 

*Represents contribution to Avaada foundation a controlled trust to support the education, empowerment, health, environment and rural electrification, emphazing 
more on women education and empowcnnent. 

27. 

1 

financial Ratio 
Particulars 

Cu.,-ent Ratio (in times) (Cu.,-ent Assets/Crni-ent Liabilities) 

Reasons for variance:- Increase in current bank deposit and increase in trade receivables has 
resulted in increase in the cu.,-ent asset, hence variance in ratio. 

2 Debt-Equity Ratio (in times) [Total Debt/ Equity)* 

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 

[(Profit after Tax excluding exceptional items+ Finance Cost+ Depreciation / (Interest payment+ 
Principal repayment)) ** 

4 Return on Equity Ratio ( in times) (Profit after tax / Average shareholder equity) 

Reasons for variance:- Reduction of net income (PAT) due lo pre-payment penalty and 
processing lees charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of prepayments of existing 
borrowing. 

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio (Net Sales/Average inventory)*** 

6 Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in times) [(Revenue from operation) / Average Trade 
Receivable)] 

7 Net capital turnover ratio ( Net Sales/ Working capital) 

Reasons for mriance:- Reclassification of Bank deposit from non cu.,-ent financial asset to 
current financial asset and increase in debtor has resulted in increase in the cu.,-cnt asset, hence 
variance in ratio. 

8 Trade payables turnover ratio=Net credit purchases / Average Payable**** 

9 Net Profit ratio(%) [Profit after tax/Revenue from Operations] 

10 Rctum on capital employed (Profit afler tax+finance cost)/(Tangible net wo11h + Total debt* + 
Defo.,-ed tax liabilities) 

11 Return on investment = Income generated from investments / Time weighted average 
investments***** 

*Total debt Includes non-cu.,-ent borrowing and cu.,-ent bo.,-owing. 

for the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

1.6 1 

2.92 

I.SI 

(0.02) 

Not applicable 

4.24 

4.41 

Not applicable 

-3.68% 

8.02% 

Not applicable 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2021 

0.93 

2.89 

1.8 I 

0.02 · 

Not applicable 

4.38 

(36.09) 

Not applicable 

3.21% 

8.40% 

Not applicable 

Variance¾ 

74.42% 

1.15% 

0.00% 

-213.93% 

-3.10% 

- 112.21 % 

-6.89% 

-0.38% 

**Interest payment and repayments represents the future interest payments and repayments oflong teffll debt due within twelve months of the reporting date. 
***Not Applicable. as the Company has only inventory of stores and spares paits. There is no inventory of finished goods. 
****Not Applicable, as the company payables outstanding are for other expenses, for which no credit period is defined. 
*****Not Applicable, as the Company has made sh011 tenn investments (bank deposits and mutual funds) for utilising the surplus fimd. 

e financial ratios measures presented may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. □~\SE t ,i,~ 
j)~-1, 
ul 
~-

~lt * ·0~' / 
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.\rnada Solarist• Encrn\' Prirntc Limited 
CIN:A l1-WJ00DL20l8PT('JJ8280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the .Har ended i\hirch JI. 2022 
(All alll(IUllts in INR millinns tmkss state<l oth1:rwis1,.•) 

27. th\ OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION 

n) The Company do 1101 ha\·e ,my Benarni pwpeny. when.• any proceeding has been initiated or pending against thl.' Company l(u· ho\Jing any 
Benami propl.'rtv. 

b) The Company <lo not have any lrnnsactions with companies struck off. 

c) 111,: Company do lllll hav,: any charg,:s or saLisfoction which is ycL to b,: r,:gist,:r,:d with ROC' beyond the statutory p,:riod. 

d) The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency 11r viitual l'.Urrency during the linarn.:ial year. 

c) Thi.:' Company !ms not been d1."Cl:1nxl wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any govemmcnt m1thority. 

I) All the title tkeds.' lease deed of immovable properties are held in the name or the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

g) The Company have not advanc1.-d or loaned or inVl'Stcd funds to any other per:..on(s) (lf cnlity(ies), inclu<ling foreign entities (lntcnnediaries) 
with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
i) directly or indirectly lent! or invest in otllcr persons or entities identifie<l in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf or the- C11mpany 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or: 
ii) pro\.'i<le any guarantee. security or the like lo or on bdrnlf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

h) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or cntity(ies). inclu<ling foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
i) direelly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons nr entities kkntified in any manner whatsoever by or on bdmlf of th~ Funding Pmty 
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or: 
ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf or the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

il The Company have not any such tramrnction which is not recordlxl in the books or accounts that has been surrcn<ler1.'l.l or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196 l (such us. search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax: Act. 1961). 
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Amada Solarisc Encrg~ Pri\':ltc Limited 
Cl:'i:- l ·~oJO(ll)l .2018PTC.U82811 
:'iotcs to Financial Statements for the ~·car ended :\larch JI. 2022 
(:\ II amllunls in INR millillnS unkss sl:lled lllherwist') 

28. Disclosure of si~nific:rnt :1ccounting judg<.·mcnts, estimates and assumptions 
The preparation or lhc Comp;my's financial stmcmc,ns n:quircs managcmcnt to make jmlgcmcnls. \!stimatcs and assumptions that atl~ct the rcpo11cd 
amounts of revenues, cxpcnscs. assets and liabilities. and the accompanying disclosures. and the disclosure of eolllingenl liabilities. Uncertainty about these 
assumptions and estimates could resuh in outcomes lhal require a material adjustment lO the can-ying amounl of asscls or liabilities affected in lt1ture 
periods. 

Judgements, estimates and nssumptions 

The judgements and key assumptions conceming lhe foturc and other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the reporting date, thal have a signilicant risk 
o f causing a material adjustment lo lhc can-ying amounts ofassels and liabilities within !he nexl financial year, arc described below. The Company based its 
judgements. assumptions and cstim.ih:s on pammctcrs avnilablc when the financial statcmcnLs were prepared. Existing circumstanct..~ and assmnptions about 
foture developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that arc beyond the control of the Company. Such changes arc 
reflected in th<: assumptions when they occur. 

Signific:int judgements, estimates and assumptions arc as specified below:-

Useful lives of proper!}". plant and equipment 

The Company reviews the useful Iii\: or property, plant and equipment al !he end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in 
depreciation expense in future periods. 

T:ixes 

Dcforrcd tax asscls arc recognised for unabsorbed tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and all deductible temporary diflerenccs, to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilised. Management judgement is required to dctcnninc the amount of 
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level or future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategics. 

The Company has reviewed tax losses and unabsorbed depreciation, and dctcnnincd that it is probable thal sullicicm future taxable profits will be available 
against which such lax losses and unabsorbed depreciation can be utilised. Thus, the Company has recognized a corresponding delerred lax asscl on the 
snmc. 

Any changes in these assumptions may have an impact on the measurement of the deferred taxes in future. 

Defined benefit phms (grntuity benefits) 
The cosl or the defined benefit gratuity plan and other posl-cmploymcnt benefits and the present value of the gratuity obligation are dcle nnincd using 
aetuurial valuations. An acl1~1rial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual devclopmcms in the future. These include lhc 
detennination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-tenn nature, a 
defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions arc reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter mosl subject to change is the discount rate. In dctcnnining the approprialc discount ralc for plans operated in India, lhc management 
considers the intercs1 rates or government bonds in India. 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mot1ality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables lend to change only al interval in response 
to demographic changes. Future salary increases and grnluity increases are based on expected future inflation rates in India. 

Leases 
The Company has taken certain land and land & building on long tenn lease basis . The lease agreements generally have an escalation clause and are 
generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or nol lo exercise an option to 
tenninate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the 
lease, or not lo exercise the option to tenninate the lease. The Company evaluates if an an.mgement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of IND 
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires judgment. The Company uses judgement in assessing the lease lenn and the applicable discount rate. The discoum 
rate is generally based on the incremental bo1rnwing rate. 

Fair value of interest-free long term loans 

The lair value of interest-free loans is detennincd using discounted cash flow method using a market interest rate of a comparable instrument having the 
same tenns. The difference between the fair value and transaction value has been cons idered as deemed equity contribulion from the parent company hence 
recognised and included in equity. 

Fair value of financial instruments 
When the fair values or financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannol be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, 
their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the present valuation technique. The inputs to these models arc taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include · · 
inputs such as liquidity nsk, credit risk and volatility. Changes 111 assumptions about these foclors could affect the reported fair -A:::;::;~ ;;:;,:i~ 

s. 

- ( 
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Av:rnda Solarise Encrgr Prh·ate Limited 
CIN:- ll40300DL2018PTC338280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended l\larch 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR millions unless slated otherwise) 

29. Operntini: Sci:mcnts 

The Company's Bo,1rd o r Dircclrn,· is considered 10 be th.: chid' operating decision maker in accordance with Ind AS 108. Based on the financial 
infonn:llion reviewed by the chid' opernting decision maker in deciding how to allocate the resources and in assessing the perli:mnancc or the Company. the 
Company has determined that it has a single operating and reporting segment. i.e .. sale or power. The Company's principal operations arc located in India. 
Accordingly. the Company cams its entire n:vcnue from India. All of the Company·s non cmTcnt assets arc located in India. 

30. Related party transactions 

(i) Names of related parties and related party relationship 

(a) Related parties where control exists 
Ultimate holding company 
Holding company 
Fellow Subsidiary Company 

Key managerial personnel 

(ii) Transaction with related parties during the vcar 
Particulars 

Proceeds from current borrowings 
Avaada Enerl!V Private Limited 
Avaada C lean Project Private Limited 

Repavment of current borrowine:s 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Ventures Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Project Private Limited 

Purchase of l!oods & services from 
Avaada Enerl!V Private Limited 

Transfer of retirement obligation liability employee transferred to 
Avaada RJHN Private Limited 
Avaada Sunce Energy P1ivate Limited 

EPC advance return 
Avaada Enere.v Private Limited 

Reimbursement of exoenses bv 
Avaada Enere.v Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Project Private Limited 

Laud purchase 
Viraj Solar Maharashtra Private Limited 

Contribution of fund in relation to CSR expenditure 
A vaada Foundation 

Compensation to key managerial personnel 

Avaada Venturc."S Private Limited 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Projt'Ct Private Limited 
Virnj Solar Maharashtra Private Limited 
Avaada RJHN Private Limited 
Avaada Sunce Energy Private Limited 
Avaada SataraMH Private Limilt'Cl 
Clean Sustainable Energy Private Limited 
Fenni Solarfarms Private Limited 
Avaada Foundation 

Raj ... -sh Bihari Dwivedi (Director) 
Gopal Goel (Director) 
Aadislui Vinay Sahasrabuddhe (Company Secretary) 

Ultimate holding company Holding and other related 
companies 

March 31, 2022 March 31 , 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

. . 7.57 . 

. - 7 .50 . 

. . 0,07 . 

. 0.91 1.53 . 

. - 1.33 . 

. 0.91 . . 
- . 0.20 . 

. . . 20.00 
- . . 20.00 

. . 0.12 . 

. . 0.08 . 

. . 0.05 . 

. . . 0.25 

. - . 0.25 

. . I0.48 11.58 

. . 6 .93 11.55 
- . 3.54 0.03 

. . . 1.28 
- . . 1.28 

. . I.SO 1.10 

. . 1.50 1.10 

No remuneration has been paid lo the directors and Company secretaiy for the services received during the year ended March 31.-2022. 
/ 
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Anrnda Solarise Energy P.-ivate Limited 
CIN:- ll-'0300DL2018PT038280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31. 2022 
(All amounts in INR millions unkss stated otherwise) 

(iii) Bal:111ces outstanding at the end of the ,·car 
Particulars 

Other financial liabilities 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 

Current borrowine:s 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 
Avaada Clean Pro ject Private Limited 
Avaada RJHN Private Limited 
Avaada Suncc Energy Private Limited 

Corporate 211arantee issued in favour of banks in relation to loan availed b\' 
Avaada Energy Private Limited 

Ultimate holding companv 
l\larch 31 , 2022 l\larch31,2021 

- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -

All the amounts payable to related paities above arc unsecured and will be settled in cash. 

Holding and other related 
l\larch 31 , 2022 March 31 , 2021 

19.75 19.75 
19.75 19.75 

47. 14 30.50 
43.58 30.47 

3.44 0.03 
0 .08 -
0.05 -

- 5,139.80 
- 5.139.80 

(iv) Avaada SataraMH Private Limited. Ckan Sustainable Energy Private Limited and Fcnni Solarlarms Private Limited has given corpo rate guarantee for an 
amount INR 9.41 0 ( Marc h 3 1. 2021 : Nil) in lavour of debenture ho lders of the Company. 
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.\,·;rnda Sola rise Enc,·~~- Prirnte Limited 
CIN:- ll-'0300DL2018PTC338280 
Notes to financial statenwnts for the year ended i\larch 31, 2022 
(All amounts in INR millinns unkss slalcJ <>lhc1wisc) 

31. Grntuity and other post employment benefit plans 
(a) Defined benefit plan• grntuit~· 
The Company has a ddined bcnelil lor gmluily. Eve1y cmplnyce who has co111pk1cd live years or nH)rc or service gels a gratuity on depanurc al 15 days 
sal.1ry (last drnwn sala1y) for each cornplcle<l year of service. The Co111pany pro\'idcs for the liability in its books o i' accounts bascc.l on the actuarial 
valuation. The following lab k s summarize the components or net benefit cxpt!nsc recognized in the stalcmcnl or pro lit and loss and the rundcd s1a1us 
und amounts recogniz~'() in the balance sheet for the rt-spectivc plans. 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Compa11y's ... P ... l"'a"'n...;a.;.;;1..;;·e..;;s"'h..;;o_\\..;;'n;..l::.>c.:..;l..:.o_\\--'': _________ _ 

Discount rate 
Salaty increment rate 
Retirement age assistant vice president and below 
Retirement age vice president and above 
Mortality table 

\Vithdrawal rates: age related and past experience 
Age 
Upto 30 year 
Bel ween 3 I and 44 y~-ars 
Above 44 years 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
7.40% 
7.00% 

60 years 
60 years 

6.88% 
7.00% 

60 years 
60 years 

Indian Assured lives 
Mot1ali1y (2012- 14) 

Indian Assured lives 
Mortality (20 12-14) 

% Withdrawal 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

3% 3% 
2% 2% 
1% 1% 

The principal assumptions arc the discount mle and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yield available on the 
Govemmcnl bonds at the accounting date with a term that matches that of the liabiliLiL'S and the salary growth rale tah,s account of inflation. seniority. 
promotion and other relevant factors on long Lenn basis. 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation arc as follows: 
Opening defined benefit obligation 
Obligation transle1Ted to fellow subsidiary Company 
Current service cost 
lnlcresl cost* 
Re-measurements 
Bcnclits paid 
Actuarial (gain) / loss 

Closing defined benefit obligation 
*Exprc-ssed in absolute• lnlcresl cost Rs. 5.845 (March 31. 2021: 424) 

Balance sheet 
Present value of delint'CI benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 
Plan asset/ (liability) 

Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss 
Interest cost 
CmTent service cost 
Net benefit expense 

Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income 
Actuarial (gain) / loss 

Due to change in demographic assumptions 
Due to change in financial assumptions* 
Due to change in experience adjustments 

Tota l expense recognised in statement of other comprehensive income 

March 31, 2022 
0.08 

(0.06) 
0.02 
0.0 1 

0.03 
0.08 

March 31, 2022 
(0.08) 

(0.08) 

March 31, 2022 
0.01 
0.02 
0.03 

March 31, 2022 

(0.01) 
0.03 

0.03 

March31,2021 
0.01 

0.05 
0.00 
O.D3 

(0.0 1) 

0.08 

March 31, 2021 
(0.08) 

(0.08) 

March 31, 2021 
0.00 
0.05 
0.05 

March 31, 2021 

(0.00) 
0.04 

0.03 
*Exprt-ssed in absolute - expense recognised in other comprehensive income Rs. 8.238 (March 31, 2021: 1.185) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assu mptio_ ~1.:..1 .::.as:..:;ca.:..t .:..M.:.:a:..:r....:cc:.:h....:3:..;l:.,,..:2c::0-=2-=2..;;i.:..s .::a=-s ..::s::.ho=-'.:.:.v.:.:n....:b:..:c:.:.lo=-'.:..v.:..: _______________ _ 
Discount rate 

Sensitivity Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Salary growth rate 

0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (0.0 1) 0 .01 0.01 (0.0 I) 
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Amada Solnrise Ener::y Prirnte Limited 
CIN:- ll-'0300Dl.2018PTC3J8280 

Notes lo ti11:1nci:1I statements for the ~·car ended ~larch 31, 2022 
(.'\ II amounts in INR millions unless staled o therwise} 

,\ tJll!tnlitalivc scnsilivitJ· analJ·sis for significant assumption as al March 31. 2021 is as shown below: 

Discount rate 
Sensitivity Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 
Increase/ (decrease) in ddined bcnclil obligation (0.01 ) 0.01 

Snlarv 0 rowth rate 
0.50% increase 

0.0 1 
0.50% decrease 

(0.0 1) 

Sens itivities due lo mortality & withdrawals arc not material hence impact of change due lo these is not calculalcd. Sensitivities as lo rate of increase of 
pensions in payment. rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are 1101 applicable. 

The following payments arc expected contributions lo the defined benefit plan in future years: 

Within one year* 

1-5 years 
More than 5 years 

*Expressed in absolute- within one year Rs. 2,695 (March 3 I, 202 1: 3, 193) 

March 31, 2022 
0.00 

0.02 

March 31, 2021 
0.00 

0.03 

The average dunttion of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 3. 79 years (March 3 1, 2021: 2.09) 

Description of risk exposures: 

Valuations :ire based on cc11ain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed lo various risks a s follows: 

a) Salary Increases-Actual salary increases will increase the Plan' s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in foture valuations will also 
increase the liability. 

b) Discount Rate : Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan' s liability. 

c) Mm1ality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher l11an assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities. 

d) Withdrnwals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower 11,an assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can 
impact plan's liability. 

(b) Compensated absence : The amount of the provision INR 0.06 (March 31, 2021: INR 0.12) 

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligations for the Company's~p_l_nn_a_r_e_s_h_o_n_·n_bc_l_o_w_: __________ _ 

Discount rate 

Salary increment rate 

Leave availmenl rate 

Retirement age assistant vice president and below 

Retirement age vice president and above 

Mortality table 

Withdrawn! rates: age related and past experience 

Age 
Upto 30 year 

Between 3 1 and 44 years 

Above 44 years 

March 31, 2022 

7.40% 

7.00% 

0.50% 

60 years 

60 years 

Indian Assured lives 
Mortality (20 12- 14) 

March 3 1, 2021 

6.88% 

7.00% 

0.50% 

60 years 

60 years 

Indian Assured lives 

Mortality (20 12-14) 

% Withdrawal 

March31,2022 March3l,2021 

3% 3% 

2% 2% 

1% 1% 

A qunnlilalive sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below: 

Discount rate 
Sensitivity Leve l 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefi t obligation (0.01) 0.0 1 

Salary growth rate 

0.50% increase 

0.01 

0.50% decrease 

(0.01) 

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as nl March 31, 2021 is as shown below: 

Discount rate 
Sensitivity Level 0.50% increase 0.50% decrease 

Increase/ (decrease) in defined benefit obligation (0.01) 0.0 1 

(c) Defined contribution plan 

Salary growth rate 

0.50% increase 

0.01 

0.50% decrease 

(0.01) 

During the year, the Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Lo;;.s;;,,;s;.._ _____ _ _ _ _ _ _______ _ 

March 31, 2021 
ontribution to Employee's Provident Fund 0.14 

0.14 
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.-\\'aada Solnrise Encrg~· Prirnte Limited 
CIN:- U-IOJOODL2018PTC.H8280 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended !\larch JI . 2022 

(All amoums in INR millions unkss stated othc•1wisc1 

32. Fair ,·alues 

Set out bl'iow. is a comparison by class o r th.: carrying ,mwunts and fair value• or the Company·s linancial instruments. other than those with carrying 
amounts that arc reasonable approximations or fair values: 

Financial assets 
11tle11s11red 1111111wrtised cost 

Security deposits 

Trade R-cdvablcs 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Other bank balances 
Other linancial assets 

Financial liabilities 
Me11s11red 11111111ortisetl cost 

Non-conve11iblc debentures/ Financial Institutions 
borrowings 

Lease liability 

Loans from related panics 
Trade payables 

Other financial liabililit.-s 

33. Fair value hierarchy 

Note 

5{a) 
8(a) 

S(b) 
S(c) 
S(d) 

I 3(a) 

13(b) & 16(c) 
16(a) 
I 6(b) 
I 6(d) 

Carrying Value 

Mnrch 31 , March 31, 
2022 2021 

0.53 O.D3 
260.58 178.02 

62.06 113.91 
191.40 
251.38 376.88 

4,946.53 5,033.89 

328.03 295.74 
47.14 30.50 
42.37 73.08 
19.75 21.11 

Fair value 

l\larch 31. March 31 , 
2022 2021 

0.53 0.03 
260.58 178.02 

62.06 113.91 
191.40 
251.38 376.88 

4.946.53 5,033.89 

328.03 295.74 
47.14 30.50 
42.37 73.08 
19.75 21.11 

The foir value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that arc used lo measure fair value that arc either observable or unobservable und consists 
of the following three levels: 

• Level I - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
- Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 
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.-\rnad:1 Solarisc Ener~, l' rh·ale l.i111ilcd 

Cl\:- l'-tOJOOl>l.2018PTC.U82HO 
\oles to Financial St:1tc111cn1, for lhe yeai· ended \larch 31. 2022 

(All amo unts in INR millions unkss staled 01hcnvis..:) 

3-'. Financi:11 risk 111:111:1:,tement ohjecti\'cs :ind policies 

In its ordimuy opcrtnions. tht.:: Company's nctivitics expos..: Lt to the various types or risks. which urc ussuciatcd with th..: linancial instruments and market:-. 
in which ii op..:rmcs. The Company has ll risk managemenl po licy which covers 1hc foreign exchanges risks and other risks associa1ed wi1h the financial 

assets and liabilitics such as inlc resl rnte risks and crcdit risks. The risk management po licy is approved by 1he board or direc1ors. The lo llowing is the 
summmy or lhc main risks: 

(a) i\larket risk 

Markel risk is the risk Iha! changes in mmkel prices, snch as foreign exchange rates (Ctlll'c ncy risk) ;md interest rates (interest rate risk) will affect the 

Company's income or value o r it's holding o f financial instruments. T he objective or market risk management is 10 manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising lhe return. 

{i) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the lair that the fair value or future cash nows of a financial instrument w ill tluctume becmtSe o r changes in market interest 

rates. T he capi tal expenditure o r the company is financed by loans, the shareho lders' lhncl and internal proceeds. The interest bearing loans o r the 
Company comprises of both fixed and !loating rate. 

Interest rate scnsiti\'ity 

The following table clemonstrnlcs the sens itivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and bon·owings. With all other variables held 

constant, the Company's·prolit before tax is atlccted on account of i111pact on noating rate bcllTowings, as follows: 

March 31, 2022 

Non-conveniblc debentures 

Impact on profit before tax on account o r increase in interest costs 

Impact on profit before tax on account o f decrease in interest costs 

March 31, 2021 
Tenn Loan from financial institutio ns 

Impact on profit before tax on account o r increase in interest costs 

Impac t on profit before tax on account o r decrease in interest costs 

(b) Credit risk 

Amount 

4,946.53 

5,033.89 

lncreasc/(d ecre Effect on loss 

ase) in basis 

points 

1.00% 
( 1.00%) 

1.00% 

(1.00%) 

before tax 

49.47 
(49.47) 

50.34 
(50.34) 

Credit risk is the risk that counterpa,ty will not meet its obligations under a linancial instnuncnt or customer contract, leading 10 a linanc ial loss. The 

Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activ ities (pri111arily trade receivables) and li-0111 its linancing activities, including deposits with 

banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instru111cnts. C redit risk is managed by company's established policy, 
procedures and control re lating to customer credit risk management. 

Financial assets that potentially exposed the Company to credit risk arc listed below: 

Trade receivables 

Other financial assets 

Total 

(i) Trade Receimblcs 

As at 

March 31, 
2022 

260.58 

260.58 

As at 
March JI , 

2021 
178.02 

1.73 
179.75 

Customer c redit risk is managed on the basis of Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to c ustomer credit risk management. 

Outstanding customer receivables are regularly mon itored . The Company evaluat.:s the concentration or risk with rL'Spect to trade receivables as low. T he 

Company primarily generates revenue fro m sale of power to single off taker. The trade receivables mainly comprise of private companies, however the 

Company docs not foresee any credit risk attached to receivables from such companies. The Company does not hold co llateral as security. 

{ii) Financial instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk fro m balances with banks arc 111anagcd by the Company's management in accordance with the approved policy. Investments of su11ilus funds 

arc made only with approved coun1e111mtics. Counte111a1ty credit limits are reviewed by the management on an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise 

the concentration of risks and therefore 111itigate financial loss through countcrpany·s potential failure to make payments. 

{c) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risks are managed by the Company's management in accordance with Company's policy. T he Company's objective is to mainta in a balance 

between continuity o r funding and nexibility through the use or bank loans and equity shares. The company attempts to ensure that there is a ba lance 

between the timing of outflow and in!low o f funds. The C9mpany assessed the concentration of risk with respect 10 refinancing its debt and concludcd it 

to be low since company has access to a sunicient variety o f sources of funding. The Company is not subject to any restrictions on the use of its capital 

that could significantly impact its operations. In light of these facilities, the Company is not exposed to any sig nificant liquidity risk . 
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The table below provides details regard in!! the contr:iclual maluritics or linanc ial assels and liabililies as al March 31, 2022: 
Parliculars [ffccti\'e Within I Hctween I and i\lorc than 5 Total 

Variable interest r:tte 
Non-convcniblc dcbcnlurcs 

Non-I ntcrest bea ring 
Lease liability 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Olher financial liabilities 

interest rate 
% .:1. 

7.10 

year 

53 1.39 

30.50 
246.74 

42.37 
19.75 

870.75 

5 )'C:ll'S 

5,388.08 

129.96 

5,518.04 

years 

671.04 

67 1.04 

5,919.47 

831.50 
246.74 

42.37 
19.75 

7,059.83 

C:trr·ying 
an,ount 

4,946.53 

328.03 
246.74 

42.37 
19.75 

5,583.42 

The following table s ummarises the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative linancial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the 
undiscountcd contractual maturities of the linancial assels including interest that will be earned on those assets. 

Particulars Effective Within I Between I and More th:tn 5 Total 
interest rate year 5 years years 

% .a. 
Variable interest rate 
Tenn deposits** 4. 15 261.86 261.86 

Non-Interest bearing 
Trade receivables 260.58 260.58 
Cash and cash equivalents 62.06 62.06 
O1hcr bank balances 191.40 191.40 

514.04 261.86 775.90 
*Includes p,inc ipal and interest cash nows. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 202 1: 

P:1rticul:1rs Effective Within I Between l :tnd More than 5 Total 

Variable interest rate 
Tenn loan from financial institutions* 

Non-Interest hearing 
Lease liability (refer note 4) 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other financia l liabilities 

*Includes principal and interest cash flows. 

interest rate 
% .a. 

9.82 

year 

198.89 

30.50 
30.50 
73.08 
2 1.11 

354.08 

5 years 

419.37 

127.31 

546.68 

years 

4.41 5.63 

737.35 

5,152.98 

5,033.89 

895 .16 
30.50 
73.08 
2 1.11 

6,053.74 

Carrying 
amount 

251.38 

260.58 
62.06 

19 1.40 
765.42 

Carrying 
amount 

5,056. 10 

295.74 
30.50 
73.08 
21.1 1 

5,476.53 

The following table summarises the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the 
undiscountcd contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. 

Particulars E:ffecth•e Within I Between I and More than 5 Total C arrying 
interest rate year 5 years years amount 

% .a. 
Variable interest rate 
Tenn deposit** 3.30 - 5.60 376.88 376.88 375.15 

Non-Interest bearing 
Trade receivables 178.02 178.02 178.02 
Cash and cash equivalents 113.91 113.9 1 11 3.9 1 

291.93 376.88 668.81 667.08 
*Includes principal and interest cash flows. 
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.\,·a.ul;1 Solarisc EncrJ!~ l'rirntc Limited 
Cl\':• r 403011 IH.20 I H l'TC,31121111 
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(,\II amounts in INll milli,,ns unless staled othc,wisc) 

JS. Capital m,111age1ncnt 
Thi.! Company munrig~s its capirnl to ensure that it will h..: able to continui: ns going com:em while maximising th.: n:tu111 to stakd1oldcrs through the 

optimisation o r the ddit and equity balance. Tl11, Capital structun: or the Company consist o r net debt (bom,wings as dc1aikd in notes b<:low) and total 
equity of the company. 

In orckr to achieve this overall objcctive of capital management. amongst o thcr things, thc Company aims to ensure that it meets financial covcnams 
auach.:d to th.: borrowings facilities dclining capital stn1cture requircmcnts, where breach in meeting the linancial cownants may pennit the lender to call 
the borrowings. 

Thcre have been no breach in the financial covs:nants of any bo1Towing facilities during the year. Therc is no change in in the o~jectivcs. polic ies or 
processes for managing capital over previous year. 

Long tcnn bonuwings ( including cun·cnt maturities of long tcnn debts) 

Less: Cash m1cl cash equivalents 
Net debt (A) 

Total E1111ity 
Capital and net debt (BJ 

Gearing ratio I (A)/(H) I 

As at 
March 31, 

2022 
4.946.53 

(62.06) 

4.884.47 

1,822.80 

6,707.27 

72.82% 

As at 
March 31, 

2021 

5,033.89 
( 113.91 ) 

4,919.98 

1.857.01 
6,776.99 

72.60% 
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36. Commitments and continJlencies 
a) Commitments 

The Company has entered into power supply agreements lor a total tcnn o f 25 years with ;1 commitment to supply power having tariff o r INR '.!.9'.! / KwH 
with Nil c-scalation. 

b) The Company docs not have any pending litigutions which would impact its financial pos ition. 

37. Based on intimation received by the Company from its supplier regarding their status under the Micro. Small and Medium EntcrpriSL'S Dcvclopm<!nt Act, 
2006 the relevant information is providL><l below: 

Particulars 

a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon (lo be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at 
the end of each accounting year: 

b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenns or section 16 of the Micro. Small and Medium En1e1vriscs 
Development Act. 2006. along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
during each accounting year: 

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro. Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006; 

d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year: and 

c) The amount of f111iher interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years. until such date when the 

interest dues above are actually paid to the small cntc1vrise, lor the pu1vosc of disallowance of a deductible 

expenditure under section 23 of the Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006. 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1.90 

1.90 

As at 
March 31, 2021 

2.27 

2.27 

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been detc1111ined to the extent such paities have been idcntilied on the basis of information collected by the 
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors. 

38. Events after the reporting period 
There arc no significant reportable events occun"ing aller the repmting period. 

39. Approval of financial statements 
The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 30, 2022. 

40. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

41. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

42. The Company's business is generation and sale of solar energy. n,e Company believes that so far. there is no significant impact of COVID- 19 pandemic on 

the linancial position and pcrfonnance o f the Company. Fmthcr. the Company is not expecting any significant change in estimates as of now as the 
Company is running its business and operations as usual without any major disruptions. 

See accompanying notes forming part o f the financial. statements 

,.~ ~""'""'"""' Company secretary 
Place: Naida 

Date : May 30, 2022 
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